
September 7, 2017

Agenda for Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District 

to be held at the District’s office at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale 

Wednesday, September 13, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

NOTES: To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, to participate in any Board meeting please 
contact Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 at least 48 hours prior to a Board meeting to inform us of your 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible. 

Additionally, an interpreter will be made available to assist the public in making comments under Agenda 
Item No. 4 and any action items where public input is offered during the meeting if requested at least 48 
hours before the meeting.  Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 with your request. (PWD Rules 
and Regulations Section 4.03.1 (c) )  

Adicionalmente, un intérprete estará disponible para ayudar al público a hacer comentarios bajo la 
sección No. 4 en la agenda y cualquier elemento de acción donde se ofrece comentarios al público durante 
la reunión, siempre y cuando se solicite con 48 horas de anticipación de la junta directiva. Por favor de llamar 
Dawn Deans al 661-947-4111 x1003 con su solicitud. (PWD reglas y reglamentos sección 4.03.1 (c) ) 

Agenda item materials, as well as materials related to agenda items submitted after distribution of the agenda 
packets, are available for public review at the District’s office located at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale 
(Government Code Section 54957.5). Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 for public review of 
materials. 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES:  The prescribed time limit per speaker is three-minutes. 
Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited applause, comments, or cheering.  
Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability of the District to carry out its 
meeting will not be permitted and offenders will be requested to leave the meeting. (PWD Rules and 
Regulations, Appendix DD, Sec. IV.A.) 

Each item on the agenda shall be deemed to include any appropriate motion, resolution, or ordinance to take 
action on any item. 

1) Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence.

2) Roll Call.

3) Adoption of Agenda.

4) Public comments for non-agenda items.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT -2-             September 7, 2017 

5) Presentations:

5.1) Summary of expenditures for emergency repairs for 2016 and 2017 to date.
(Facilities Manager Moore/Project Manager Thompson Sr./Finance Committee) 

6) Action Items - Consent Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on
any action item on the Consent Calendar as the Consent Calendar is considered
collectively by the Board of Directors prior to action being taken.)

6.1) Approval of minutes of regular meeting held August 23, 2017.

6.2) Payment of bills for September 13, 2017.

7) Action Items - Action Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on any
action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being
taken.)

7.1) Consideration and possible action on rescheduling or cancelling the second
regular Board meeting in November due to the Thanksgiving holiday. (Director 
Henriquez) 

7.2) Consideration and possible action on continuing the District’s benefit package 
through JPIA and adjusting the District contribution cap to provide the lowest 
cost family benefit package to employees. (Human Resources Director 
Emery/Personnel Committee) 

7.3) Consideration and possible action on not designating annual cost of living 
adjustment towards employees’ portion of CalPERS effective January 1, 2018. 
(Human Resources Director Emery/Personnel Committee) 

7.4) Consideration and possible action on Safety and Training Technician position at 
salary range 29. ($22,000.00 for remainder of 2017; position will be included in 
2018 Budget - Non-budgeted – Human Resources Director Emery/Personnel 
Committee) 

7.5) Consideration and possible action on Internship Program. (Funded through the 
Foundation for Community Colleges – Human Resources Director 
Emery/Personnel Committee) 

7.6) Consideration and possible action on co-hosting Leadership Training for Elected 
Officials. (Chair Estes/Human Resources Director Emery) 

7.7) Consideration and possible action on authorization of the following conferences, 
seminars, and training sessions for Board and staff attendance within budget 
amounts previously approved in the 2017 Budget:  

a) 10th Annual WaterSmart Innovations Conference and Exposition to be
held October 4 – 6, 2017 in Las Vegas, Nevada.

7.8) Adjourn to September 13, 2017 annual meeting of Public Facilities Corporation. 
(General Manager LaMoreaux) 

8) Information Items:

8.1) Reports of Directors:

a) Meetings/General Report.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT                     -3-                                          September 7, 2017 
 
 

b) Standing Committee/Assignment Reports (Chair):  

 1) Facilities Committee 

8.2) Report of General Manager. 

 8.3) Report of General Counsel. 

9) Public comments on closed session agenda matters. 

10) Break prior to closed session. 

11) Closed session under: 

 11.1) Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation: A closed session will be 
held, pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 (d)(1), to confer with legal counsel 
regarding pending litigation to which the District is a party.  The title of such 
litigation is as follows: Central Delta Water Agency vs. Department of Water 
Resources; Sacramento Superior Court Case No. 34-2010-80000561.  

12) Public report of any action taken in closed session. 

13) Board members' requests for future agenda items. 

14) Adjournment. 
 

 
DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX,  
General Manager 
 
DDL/dd 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHANGING FOCUS

FROM LEAKS TO APPS

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.1



MAINLINE LEAKS
• IN 2010 PWD REPAIRED

866 LEAKS.

• IN 2016 PWD REPAIRED
243 LEAKS.

• TO DATE IN 2017 PWD
HAS REPAIRED 70
LEAKS.



RE-ALIGNING 
RESOURCES

• REDUCED LEAKS MEANS
MORE RESOURCES TO
MAINTAIN OTHER ASSETS.

• STAFF EVALUATED AND
REPRIORITIZED
MAINTENANCE EFFORTS.



FLUSHING
• PWD HAS 340 SITES 

SHOULD BE FLUSHED AT 
LEAST ANNUALLY. 

• THE IMPROVED FLUSHING 
PROGRAM IMPROVES 
WATER QUALITY.



LARGE METER 
MAINTENANCE 

• PWD HAS 88 LARGE METER 
VAULTS

• 2017 ASSESSMENTS AND 
REPAIRS ARE UNDERWAY

• FIRST INSTALLATION OF 
“OCTAVE METERS”



AIR VACS
IN THE PROCESS OF 
REPLACING 567 OLD STEEL 
AIR VACS.



VALVE TURNING
PWD HAS 9,436 VALVES THAT MUST BE 
EXERCISED.  

IN 2017 STAFF WILL EXERCISE AN ESTIMATED 
4,000 VALVES. 



COLLECTOR APP

• PICTURE OF THE APP OR OF SOMEONE USING THE APP.

• PWD STAFF DEVELOPED IN HOUSE APPS 
FOR EACH OF THESE AREAS OF 
MAINTENANCE.

• ALLOWS STAFF TO INSTANTLY DOCUMENT 
AND REPORT MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES 
FROM THE FIELD

• IMPROVES EFFICIENCY, PRODUCTIVITY 
AND ORGANIZATION



Vehicle Fleet and Heavy 
Equipment



List of Vehicles and Equipment
281 YEAR MAKE MODEL DESCRIPTION LOCATION ASSIGNED: DEPARTMENT
3 2000 CAT 416C Backhoe 5604 hrs Crew Construction year 2/3

4 1991 FORD F800 Dumptruck 72,515 Crew Construction year 2/3

7 2002 FORD F150 1/2 T P/U 111,397 Pool WTP 2018

11 TRI STATE INDUSTRIES, INC Trailer Facilities Crew Construction

1978 MILLER MILLER Welder 47 67 hrs Crew Construction

16 Signal Arrowboard Facilities Crew Construction

17 1995 FORD F350 Utility 69,215 MaintWorker Facilities year 2/3

22 1996 FORD F150 1/2 T P/U 98,570 Pool WTP 2018

24 1988 FORD F8000 Crane 18,023 Facilities Facilities year 2/3

25 1992 SOUTHWEST VAN TRAILER HAZ MAT TRAILER WTP Pool WTP

033 2000 CHEV C30 Utility 131,025 ScottMahoney Operations

035 2002 FORD F150 1/2 T P/U 107,110 AudelNarez Lab year 2/3

038 IR Air Compressor Facilities Crew Construction

040 2002 BUICK LeSabre Car 87,265 Pool Facilities year 2/3

043 1990 GMC C30 Flatbed 46,119 Pool Construction year 2/3

044 SPCNS Utility Trailer Facilities Crew Construction

046 SHPBLT 4Axle Trailer Facilities Crew Construction

50 Vermeer Woodchipper Facilities Crew Construction

057 1993 Trailking 2Axle Trailer Facilities Crew Construction

058 1988 HMDE 2Axle Trailer, Water Facilities Crew Construction

059 1996 Gregor Pontoon Boat WTP Pool WTP

2000 Honda BF50A Outboard Motor-48 WTP Pool WTP

2Axle Boat Trailer WTP Pool WTP

060 1998 GMC C30 Utility 98,292 FleetTechicians Facilities year 2/3

061 1998 Trailking 2Axle Trailer Facilities Crew Construction year 2/3

066 1989 JD 644G Loader 5068 Pool WTP

067 1999 CHEV C7500 Water truck 51,699 Crew Construction year 2/3

068 1999 CHEV C20 Utility 85,838 Pool Facilities year 2/3



Budget Impact 
• Total of 81 – Vehicles, Heavy Equipment and small equipment.
• Each year the replacement should include 1 to 2 pieces of heavy

equipment. (tractors, loader, dump trucks, large service trucks with
cranes)

• Each year the replacement for vehicles and small service trucks
should include 4 to 5.

• The Leasing program has been a benefit for our vehicles and small
trucks.

• It is not a benefit to lease heavy equipment. The monthly cost for a
backhoe =$ 24,000.00



Compound 
Meters

88 TOTAL IN OUR SYSTEM



Compound meters 
supply high flow rates 
when necessary, but 
also measure low flow . 
Accuracy is essential to 
account for all water 
delivered to our 
customers and prevent 
water loss in our system



Testing for Accuracy

It is vital to test our meters
annually. Our meters are tested
through an independent
contractor. To ensure our meters
are recording and measuring
water flow for accurate billing.



It is essential to maintain and 
update our meters through:
replacement/ new technology
retro fit existing assemblies.
maintenance of existing valves 
and piping



 All compound meters 
are below ground level 
in vaults. The 
environment is harsh 
with constant moisture, 
water runoff, dirt and 
silt build up. 
Maintenance is 
important to rebuild 
and replace piping to 
ensure durability and 
longevity



Corrosion is our biggest culprit that 
causes leaks and failure



Budget Impacts

Our existing budget 
for compound meters 

include:
Annual testing 

$12,500.00
Maintenance and 
Repair $20,000.00

To upgrade and 
restore compound 

meters these line items 
to be increased by at 

least 75% 

Testing to $20,000 Maintenance to 
$35,000.00



Return on Investment

Well maintained Compound Meters will:
• Reduce unaccounted for water sales
• Improve water sale revenue



Pressure Reducing Valves 



• Pressure reducing valves separate all our pressure zones.
• There is a total of (14) pressure regulating stations
• 12 out 14 of our stations are over 23 years of age. 
• Aging valves and piping lead to leaks, corrosion and failure that would 

put customers out of service.



Pipe Corrosion





Recently the Construction Crew and Operations Crew installed a 
complete P.R.V on 47th st. E. and Ave. S-10. The cost to replace this 
assembly = $27,563.00



Cycled Maintenance 

•A Five year cycle-Pressure Reducing Valve 
Program would cost approximately $51,000.00 
per year.

•Engineering recently approved using concrete 
coated and mortar lined pipe in all our PRV 
assemblies increasing durability and longevity.



AIR VAC’s
combination air 
release / vacuum 
valves

PRIMARY FUNCTION OF AN AIR VAC IS TO 
EXHAUST AIR FROM PRESSURED PIPE.

IT ALSO ALLOWS AIR TO RE-ENTER WHEN WATER 
LEVELS DROP.



PRESSURE ZONES

 There are (7) pressure zones in our system. All at different elevations.

 2800 ‘ 

 2850 ‘ 

 2950’ 

 3000’  

 3200’ 

 3250’

 3400 +



Air Vac’s play a very 
important role to help 
keep our 
infrastructure 
functioning properly.



BUDGET IMPACT

There are 566 air vac’s 
throughout the (7) 

elevation zones in our 
system.

The cost to replace 
and repair equals  

$86,000.00

That amount would 
allow us to to replace 
every air vac in two 

years or less. 

After replacement an 
annual maintenance 

cycle would allow us to 
repair as needed for a 

cost per year of 
$10,000.00



Return on Investment

 Well maintained Air Vacs will:
 Maintain operation 

efficiency
 Reduce leaks
 Extend the life of 

mainlines



Palmdale Water District  

I N F R A S T RU CT URE  A S S E T  M A N AG E MENT - P I P E LI NES  



In 2015, the district had reported a total of 409.7 miles of pipeline installed.    

With a total replacement cost of  $379,281,458.00



There are 3 very high priority pipelines, that will need to be address as soon as possible. 
The failures in these areas will have a major impact to these sites.  



And there’s another 14 high priority sites. 







The current needs of the district are; 

COST BUDGET
LOCATION SIZE (IN) FTG DIA-IN-FT COST PRIORTY STATUS YEAR

DIV TO 3RD Q TO P-12 6 6280 21.25 $800,700.00 H DEFERRED 1956-1957
                      " 12 1330 21.25 $339,150.00 H DEFERRED 1956-1957
P-8 @ 20TH 16 1420 18.00 $408,960.00 H DEFERRED 1961
Q-1,2,4,5, 5TH PL 4 860 21.25 $73,100.00 H DEFERRED 1951
Q-10 @ 12TH 4 470 21.25 $39,950.00 H DEFERRED 1955
13TH FR Q-13 TO R 8 1000 21.25 $170,000.00 H DEFERRED 1963
Q-14 @15TH 6 880 18.00 $95,040.00 H DEFERRED 1950
26TH, RUDALL, 27TH @ R 6 140 21.25 $17,850.00 H 1964
                      " 8 350 21.25 $59,500.00 H 1964
CAMARES FR LAGO LINDO TO LKVW 8 1335 9.00 $96,120.00 H DEFERRED 1963
S-14 W/O TIERRA SUBIDA 6 390 9.00 $21,060.00 H DEFERRED 1965
V-5  W/O 47TH 6 50 9.00 $2,700.00 H DEFERRED UNKNOWN
                      " 4 668 9.00 $24,048.00 H DEFERRED UNKNOWN
                      " 2 958 9.00 $17,244.00 H DEFERRED UNKNOWN
P FR 25TH TO 500' ELY (FAA) 12 500 21.25 $127,500.00 H* DEFERRED 1961
P @ 10TH (LOCKHEED) 14 440 21.25 $130,900.00 H* 1960
                      " 12 80 21.25 $20,400.00 H* 1960
25TH  FR P TO P-8 12 2750 21.25 $701,250.00 M DEFERRED 1961
20TH FR P-8 TO Q 12 2700 21.25 $688,500.00 L 1961
17TH FR P-4 TO P-8 12 1360 18.00 $293,760.00 L 1958
WELL 17 YARD PIPING 12 280 18.00 $60,480.00 L 1958
CAMARES @ S 6 350 21.25 $44,625.00 L 1957
FT TEJON 6 3130 21.25 $399,075.00 L UNKNOWN

5.25 MILES
HIGH PRIORITY REPLACEMENT COSTS $2,444,222.00
MED. PRIORITY REPLACEMENT COSTS $701,250.00
LOW PRIORITY REPLACEMENT COSTS $1,486,440.00
TOTAL REPLACEMENT COSTS $4,631,912.00

DDW WATER MAINS 



Palmdale Water District
Infrastructure Asset Management 

-Life Cycle Cost Analysis-





In Asset Management, Deferred Maintenance is? 

 Reactive maintenance,                                                                                             

> Is a Component failure which Leads to Multiple Component failures.

↑ Failed Motor Soft Start

Failed Pump Coupling  ↑ 

Plugged Well Casing Screen 

Plugged Well Casing Screen 



New Hydro tank



Horizontal Split Case Pump  

Split Case Pump Impeller (New)

Split Case Pump Impeller (Run to Fail)

When it’s run to fail, the complete 
Pump needs replacing.



And RUN – TO – FAIL  →



System weaknesses exist.      

And we have a plan to address 
them!

Well Pump Head  →

↑  750 KVA Transforme      



• The LCCA is a basic formula for calculating life cycle costs. 

• It helps managers and board members prioritize asset 
investments. 

• Prioritizes the needs of the district by using a Cost/Benefit look 
of its initial costs and the potential benefit to the organization. 

 Such as downtime reduction, maintenance utilization, and 
proactive maintenance hours versus reactive maintenance 
hours.    

What is Life Cycle Cost Analysis (LCCA)? 



The Life cycle formula is, 

(I) + (Repl) – (Res) + (L) + (O/M & R) = LCC

The initial cost of the unit (I) + 

The replacement cost of the unit (Repl) –

The resale or residual value of the unit (Res) +

The desired useful life in years (L) + 

The operating & maintenance costs or repairs (O/M & R) 

= Life Cycle Costs  (LCC)

In reality, what matters are the systems in place and the strategies to 
properly support the systems. If managers do not clearly define these 
strategies, all technology will do is speed up their mistakes.

-Andrew Gager, CMRP, CPIM, Director of the Marshall Institute. 
Author of the LCCA formula.  



Life Cycle Cost Analysis 

 Helps project a 6 year snapshot of the districts assets and of the 
facility needs for operations and maintenance. 

 It also helps make informed investments decisions that drive 
budget distribution.  



The LCCA spreadsheets also has data for Deferred Maintenance (DM). 

The deferred maintenance formula is, 

5(L+M) X 3(G+O+P) X C X D = DM

Deferred Maintenance formula is courtesy of The Department of Interior. 



The LCCA spreadsheets data is a calculation of,   

Actual purchase prices of equipment. 

Competitive bid pricing (averaged) 

Years of useful service

Repair costs (averaged)  



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: September 6, 2017 September 13, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting

FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON RESCHEDULING OR CANCELLING THE SECOND REGULAR 
BOARD MEETING IN NOVEMBER DUE TO THE THANKSGIVING 
HOLIDAY. (DIRECTOR HENRIQUEZ) 

The second regular Board meeting in November is scheduled for November 22, 
which is the night before the Thanksgiving holiday. This item is presented for the 
Board’s discussion on rescheduling, cancelling, or conducting the meeting as scheduled. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1



P A L M D A L E   W A T E R   D I S T R I C T

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M    

DATE: September 6, 2017 September 13, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Jennifer Emery, Human Resources Director 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON CONTINUING THE DISTRICT’S BENEFIT PACKAGE THROUGH 
JPIA AND ADJUSTING THE DISTRICT CONTRIBUTION CAP TO 
PROVIDE THE LOWEST COST FAMILY BENEFIT PACKAGE TO 
EMPLOYEES. (HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 
EMERY/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE) 

Recommendation: 
Staff and members of the Personnel Committee recommend that the District maintain its current 
menu of benefits through JPIA, American Fidelity, Lincoln, and The Hartford and increase the cap 
for District paid employee benefits. 

Alternative Options: 
The alternative is to obtain new benefit providers and maintain the current cap of $1,600.00. 

Background: 
The District has obtained its benefits through JPIA in the past, and they offer the most competitive 
package we have been able to find. They also offer a significant number of other services which 
allow us to better serve our ratepayers including training, liability insurance, and workers’ 
compensation insurance. 

In addition, the District has followed a strategy of offering District paid benefits to cover the 
lowest cost plan available for employees and dependents. A $200-dollar increase to the cap on 
costs will allow us to continue with this strategy. The next few years will be challenging for the 
District in terms of succession planning, and a strong benefits package is one of the areas that will 
help us entice strong talent to the District. 

Strategic Plan Initiative: 
This work is part of Strategic Plan Initiative No. 2: Organizational Excellence 

Budget: 
This will be included in our 2018 budget.  

Supporting Documents: 
 JPIA 2018 Employee Benefits Program Renewal Package
 Insurance Rates spreadsheet.
 Cost to the Employee spreadsheet.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2



2018 
Employee Benefits Program Renewal 
MEDICAL | DENTAL | VISION | EAP | LIFE

AUGUST 3, 2017 



 

ACWA JPIA | P.O. Box 619082 Roseville, CA 95661 | acwajpia.com | 916.786.5742 

2018 Employee Benefits  

Program Renewal  
 
August 1, 2017 
 
ACWA JPIA Member, 
 
At JPIA, we work diligently to provide our members with a selection of quality, cost-effective benefit plans. 
In light of changing healthcare regulations and in an effort to lessen the impact of rising healthcare costs 
while meeting the needs of our members, we do a thorough analysis of all available options each year. 
Health plan providers, drug formulary list options, plan design elements like deductibles and copays, and 
more are all evaluated. The Employee Benefits Program Committee, comprised of member agency 
Directors and staff, carefully weighs participant impact compared to cost savings to find the right balance 
for our membership before recommending renewal actions to the Executive Committee. There are several 
important changes to be aware of this year: 
 
 The Classic PPO annual out-of-pocket maximum will increase from $1,000 to $2,000 for an individual, 

with 10% co-insurance required for hospitalization. Even after these changes, the Classic PPO plan is 
still one of the very best plans currently available on the market. The $200 individual deductible 
remains unchanged.  

 Kaiser Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP) annual out-of-pocket maximum will increase from 
$2,600 to $2,700 for an individual due to Kaiser’s application of California Assembly Bill 1305. There 
is no change to the Anthem CDHP plan design.  

 Retiree participation rules were changed to allow more employer flexibility. Surviving spouses of 
retirees will remain eligible for continued enrollment even if they remarry or enroll in group health 
coverage. To maintain these common cost control measures, employee handbooks will need to be 
updated to reflect the limitation.  

 Members who receive the 4% Incentive discount on Anthem premiums and pay 100% of the cost to 
cover dependents are no longer required to enroll dependents age 19 and above.  

 In response to member interest, three new life insurance plan options with higher limits are available 
to employers with 40 or more employees. 

 
Open Enrollment will run from October 2 through November 10, 2017. For ease of administration, 
members are encouraged to advertise a shorter Open Enrollment period within the above time frame. The 
most commonly length of Open Enrollment period utilized by member agencies is two weeks. 
 
As a reminder, JPIA offers ten medical plans and many dental, vision, and life plan options. This is a good 
time to review options to ensure that the plans you offer are the best fit for your agency. To make any 
changes to plan offerings effective January 1, 2018, please send a letter signed by the General Manager 
before September 1, 2017. This will allow employees to select plans in October. 
 
This packet includes rates that will take effect January 1, 2018. A separate communication will be sent 
with plan summaries, template communications for employees, required participant notices, and employer 
responsibilities for distribution of those notices.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please don’t hesitate to contact us at (800) 736-2292 or 
benefits@acwajpia.com. Thank you for being a part of the JPIA. 
 
Warm regards, 
 
Sandra M. Smith 
Employee Benefits Manager 
CA License # 0I72324 

mailto:benefits@acwajpia.com


 

Effective 1/1/2018 

Table of Contents 

 

 

2018 Pricing and Plan Changes          4 

2018 Policy Changes           5 

Employer Participation Requirements: Standard and Incentive     6 

Retirement Policy Requirements          8 

Kaiser Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP) 2018 Plan Changes Flyer  12 

Anthem Rate Region Map         13 

Medical Plan Side-by-Side Comparison       14  

Medical Plan Rates          15 

Dental Plan Rates          21 

Vision Plan Rates          28 

Employee Assistance Program        34 

Life Plan Designs          36 

Life and Disability Rates         37 

Changes Allowed at Open Enrollment       39 

Contact List           41 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Effective 1/1/2018 

2018 Pricing & Plan Changes 
 
ANTHEM BLUE CROSS PPO 
Rates will increase by 4.5% in all regions. The self-funded plan’s increase was 9.7% initially. JPIA 

negotiated to save 2% by obtaining multiple competitive bids for the pharmacy portion of the plan and 
leveraging potential savings. Plan design changes will save members approximately 2% going forward. 
Lastly, JPIA continues to strategically draw down excess reserve/rate stabilization funds and projects a 
subsidy of just over 1% of premiums in 2018. The resulting 4.5% increase was due to a multi-faceted 
approach to achieve the best possible plans and rates for members.  
 
As a result of extensive discussion and analysis over several years, the Employee Benefits Program 
Committee recommended that the Executive Committee update the Classic PPO plan design. In light of 
the fact that the commercial market no longer issues plans with such low out-of-pocket maximums and 
100% coverage for hospitalization, the changes will bring the plan more in line with the market while still 
maintaining one of the most robust benefit plan designs available. The Classic PPO annual out-of-pocket 
maximum will increase from $1,000 to $2,000 for an individual and from $3,000 to $4,000 for a family. 
Hospital facility charges will now require 10% co-insurance. These changes will be reflected on benefit 
summaries and will also be communicated in the template open enrollment communication distributed to 
members to share with employees.  
 
ANTHEM BLUE CROSS HMO  
Rates will increase by 8.26% in all regions. The Affordable Care Act (ACA) Federal Health Insurer Fee 

took a one year reprieve in 2017, but returned in 2018. ACA fees accounted for 3.38% of the increase in 
2018 Anthem HMO premiums. Self-funded plans like JPIA’s Anthem PPO are exempt from the Federal 

Health Insurer Fee, the ACA’s most substantial fee imposed on group health plans. 
 
KAISER CONSUMER DRIVEN HEALTH PLAN (CDHP) 
Plans renewed with a 4.64% increase in Northern California and a 13.05% increase in Southern 
California. Kaiser Senior Advantage plans renewed with 3.58% increase in Northern California and an 
8.52% increase in Southern California. The Federal Health Insurer Fee accounted for 1% of the increase 

in Kaiser’s 2018 premiums. 
 
Kaiser Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP) annual out-of-pocket maximum will increase from $2,600 to 
$2,700 for an individual, whether enrolled at the single or family level, and from $5,200 to $5,400 for a 
family. This change is due to Kaiser’s application of California Assembly Bill 1305. The deductibles 
continue to be $1,500 be for an individual enrolled without dependents and $3,000 for family. The 
enclosed “ACWA JPIA Kaiser Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP) 2018 Plan Changes” document is 

designed to assist with communicating this change to participants. There is no change to the Anthem 
CDHP plan design, which is governed by federal law.  
 
ANCILLARY PLANS 
Delta Dental PPO, DeltaCare HMO, Vision Service Plan, Employee Assistance 
Program, Life Insurance, Short-Term and Long-Term Disability 
All renewed with no change in rates.  

  

ssmith
Typewritten Text
4



 

Effective 1/1/2018 

2018 Policy Changes 
 

RETIREE ENROLLMENT POLICY UPDATE 
JPIA Retiree participation rules were changed to allow more employer flexibility. Surviving spouses of 
retirees will remain eligible for continued enrollment even if they remarry or enroll in other group health 
coverage. To maintain the exclusion, which is a common employer cost control measure, employee 
handbooks will need to be updated to specify that surviving spouses in either of these circumstances will 
lose eligibility.  
 
The Retirement Policy Requirements document is included in this renewal packet. Periodic review to 
ensure employer handbooks communicate policies to employees is recommended.  
 

INCENTIVE POLICY UPDATE 
Members who receive the 4% Incentive discount on Anthem premiums and pay 100% of the cost to cover 
dependents are no longer required to enroll dependents age 19 and above. At the time the Incentive 

policy was set, children were automatically eligible only until reaching age 19. This policy change allows 
employees to make elections for adult children according to their situation.  
 
The Employer Participation Requirements document is included in this renewal packet. Periodic review of 
this document is also recommended to ensure employer policies are within JPIA’s minimum 

requirements. Please contact benefits@acwajpia.com to request an application for Incentive Rates if you 
believe your agency may qualify.  
 

ADDITIONAL LIFE PLAN DESIGNS AVAILABLE 
In response to requests for higher life insurance maximums from member agencies, three new life 
insurance plan options will be offered. Due to restrictions put in place by the Standard, the plans with 
higher limits are only available to employers with 40 or more employees.  
 
Plan offerings can be changed by a member agency at open enrollment or mid-year. Mid-year changes to 
any plan offering except for life insurance require employers to hold a special enrollment period. 

 

  

mailto:benefits@acwajpia.com
ssmith
Typewritten Text
5



 

  Revised 7/30/2017 

Employer Participation Requirements 

Medical 

STANDARD RATES  
All employers in the ACWA JPIA pool must follow the following practices.  

ELIGIBILITY 

 Employees must be full-time employees of the district (minimum of 20 hours per week, or in 
compliance with employer policy as long as it exceeds 20 hours, or as required by the 
Affordable Care Act). 

 Directors may be covered in addition to employees, at the district's option. Directors alone 
may not be covered. If Directors are covered, they are subject to the same participation 
requirements as Active employees. 

 Retirees may be covered if employees are covered. Retirees alone may not be covered. 
 Dependents may be covered only if the subscriber is covered (with qualified COBRA 

participants and qualified retiree surviving spouses being the only exception).  
 All employees that are eligible for enrollment in a JPIA medical plan must enroll, with the 

exception that employees with other coverage can waive coverage (district must obtain 
written documentation of other group coverage). A maximum of 25% of benefits-eligible 
employees can waive coverage.  

 If any class of individuals is offered coverage, all individuals within that class must be offered 
coverage.  

 Waiting period for new hire enrollment in medical plans must be the 1st of the month following 
60 days or less. 

 
PLANS OFFERED 

 District may offer a non-JPIA HMO at the same time as a JPIA HMO, but may not offer a 
non-JPIA PPO at the same time as a JPIA PPO. If any non-JPIA plan is offered, it must be 
offered to all the same classes of employees as the JPIA plan(s). 

 
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION TO PREMIUM 

 Contribution shall be no less than the employee-only portion of the premium for the least 
expensive JPIA medical plan for which the active employee or Director is eligible. 

 Contribution for single coverage shall be the same for Directors as it is for employees. If 
retirees are covered, the employer contribution may be as little as 25% of the retired single 
retiree rate for the least cost plan for which the retiree is eligible. 

 Contribution to coverage for dependents of active employees and dependents of Directors 
must be identical, but may be less for dependents of retirees.    

 District may not be reimbursed for the full cost of coverage by an active or retired participant. 
This is considered “self-pay,” which is prohibited, with COBRA being the only exception. 

 
OTHER CRITERIA 

 Medicare-eligible retirees must enroll in Medicare Parts A and B upon eligibility. 
 Employer cannot have any personnel policies or union contracts that do not adhere to the 

plan contract provisions or that create selection against the JPIA plans such as: 
 Deferred retiree coverage 
 Extension of coverage to part-time employees (less than 20 hours/week, except as 

required by the Affordable Care Act) or contractors 
 Any policy or practice or agreement that creates selection against the JPIA medical 

plans  
 Member district admittance to the pool is subject to underwriting approval by JPIA. 

6



 

  Revised 7/30/2017 

Employer Participation Requirements 

Medical 

INCENTIVE RATES  
Employers implementing these additional policies will receive a 4% discount on all Anthem 
medical plans.1 

ELIGIBILITY 

 All Employees and Directors2 who are eligible for enrollment in the JPIA medical 
plans must enroll.   

 District does not offer cash in lieu of benefits.  
 

PLANS OFFERED 

 District offers only JPIA-sponsored medical plans. 
 

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION TO PREMIUM 

 Contribution for dependents of employees must be at least 50% of the additional 
premium. 

 If the district pays 100% of the employee and dependent premium, all eligible 
employees and their eligible dependents must be enrolled. Exception: Children age 
19 or older are permitted to waive at the employee’s discretion.  

 

OTHER CRITERIA 

 If retirees are covered, the employer must contribute at least 50% of the retiree only 
monthly premium for the least cost plan for which the retiree is eligible. 

 Early retiree population3 is less than 20% of total enrollment. 
 

 

 

 

 

1 Must apply for and be approved for Incentive Rates using the Incentive Rate Application. 

2 Individual Directors may permanently opt out of the medical plan, in conflict with underwriting 
requirements for Incentive groups, for ideological reasons without voiding the district's 4% discount. A 
Director who opts out of the medical plan will be ineligible enrollment in all plans for the duration of 
his/her term. The Director will not have Open Enrollment rights and will not have the ability to enroll in 

the JPIA plans due to loss of other coverage.  

3 Early retirees are age 50-64, and not entitled to Medicare.   

7



 

  Revised 7/30/2017 

Retirement Policy Requirements 
ACWA JPIA permits employers to provide qualifying employees with post-employment health 
benefits. Employers are required to establish and maintain a Retiree Policy that meets the 
requirements established by JPIA and the Insurance Carriers. JPIA staff does not retain each 
employer's retiree policy information, but may do so upon request to ensure plans are 
administered consistent with employer policies. All retirement policies require member Board 
approval and must be presented to JPIA at implementation or when changes are enacted. 
 
JPIA has established base requirements for Retirement Policies. Employer policies may be 
more or less generous, so long as they do not violate the requirements provided here.  JPIA has 
not set a minimum years of service requirement. This is at the discretion of each member 
agency's Board. Employer policy must be documented and adhered to without exception. The 
following is a summary of JPIA retiree health plan requirements: 

 Employee must be at least age 50 at the time of retirement. Exceptions to the 
minimum age requirement are not available for early disability retirements.  

 Retirees must meet years of service and age requirements in employer's written 
policies to be eligible for retiree coverage. 

 Employer must contribute at least 25% of the retiree only premium for the least cost 
plan for which the retiree is eligible. (If the employer is on the Incentive rating 
system, the employer must contribute 50% of the retiree only premium for the least 
cost plan for which the retiree is eligible.) 

 Retirees may not reimburse the employer for the employer share of the premium. 
This is considered “self-pay” and is prohibited in all JPIA plans, except in the case of 
COBRA. 

 Employer contributions for the retiree’s dependents may be at any level. 
 Employees must enroll in the plan they wish to retire into during the Open Enrollment 

period prior to retirement, unless the employer's policy offers Open Enrollment 
annually to all retirees.  

 There can be no lapse in coverage between the date of retirement and the date 
retiree benefits begin. The employee must transfer from active status directly to 
retired status. The employee may not go from Active to COBRA to Retiree benefits 
eligible.  

 If at any time a retiree is removed from the policy, he/she will not be eligible for 
reinstatement. 

 Employer may provide a Surviving Spouse Policy. This should be documented 
clearly in employer policies. 

 
There are many options when constructing a Retirement Policy.  It is imperative for an 
employer, in the process of implementing a new policy, to be aware that JPIA will not enroll past 
retirees who are not currently enrolled in the employer's health plans at the time of transition in 
JPIA health plans. However, once a policy is in-force the employer should apply  

ssmith
Typewritten Text
8



 

  Revised 7/30/2017 

 
 
the policy consistently and without discrimination to all employees who meet the established 
criteria. If a retiree does not meet the criteria set forth in the employer’s retirement policy, the 

retiree may exercise his/her applicable COBRA rights.     
 

PLAN SELECTION 
Option A: Employees must enroll in the medical plan they wish to remain on post-employment 
during the Open Enrollment period prior to retirement.  Allowed changes:  

1. A retiree may disenroll at any time but may not reenroll at a later date. 
2. A retiree may delete a dependent at any time but may not reenroll the dependent at 

a later date, unless #4 below applies.  
3. If a retiree is on an HMO plan and relocates to a non-HMO service area, he/she will 

be given an opportunity to enroll in the employer s PPO plan. If the retiree moves 
back into the HMO service area, the retiree may reenroll in the HMO.  

4. The retiree may add dependents not previously enrolled only if the employer’s 

existing written policy permits the addition and there is a HIPAA qualifying event and 
the dependent can show proof of continuous coverage since loss of coverage under 
JPIA’s plan. 

5. The retiree may change from the plan with higher monthly retiree premium cost to 
the plan with lower retiree monthly premium cost at any time, but may not switch 
back. 

  

Option B: Employers may choose to offer Open Enrollment rights to retirees. This must be 
documented in the employer's written policies. The employer is responsible to distribute all 
required notices, including Summary of Benefits and Coverages (SBCs) for every plan for which 
the retiree is eligible, during the annual Open Enrollment period.  Open Enrollment does not 
permit enrollment of new retirees or new dependents that were not previously enrolled. 
Open Enrollment simply permits plan changes for enrolled retirees and dependents. Should the 
employer elect to offer Open Enrollment to retirees, all of the above changes are still 
permissible except #5. If Open Enrollment is available, mid-year changes due solely to 
premium differences are not permitted.  
 

SURVIVING SPOUSE / DEPENDENT PROCEDURES 
Participating employers may institute a policy to provide coverage for surviving family members 
of a retiree who dies while covered under this plan. When such coverage is available, the 
employer will then provide premium contribution at the same level provided for the enrollee.  
Coverage will then continue for the enrolled family members until one of the following occurs: 

1. Subscription charges are not paid for on the members behalf, or 
2. The group cancels coverage for the class of subscribers to which the member 

belongs, or 
3. The agreement between the employer and JPIA terminates, or 
4. The child no longer meets all of the conditions of coverage. 

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text
9

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text



 

  Revised 7/30/2017 

 
 
Although JPIA provides the option to implement a surviving spouse policy that best suits the 
individual employer's needs, it is recommended that employers limit the extension of surviving 
spouse benefits to the spouse that was enrolled on the plan at the time the employee retired.  
 
New for 2018: The following surviving spouse exclusions no longer automatically apply 
to JPIA plans, but may be applied by documented employer policy. These optional 
employer policies are commonly used to limit ongoing financial liability. 

 Employers may choose to limit benefits for surviving spouses so that eligibility 
ceases upon 1) remarriage or 2) enrollment in another group medical plan.  

 
DIRECTOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
Government Code Section 53201 states that any director, who takes office on or after January 
1, 1995, will not be eligible for benefits upon retirement, regardless of the number of years 
served.  A director who took office prior to that date and whose local employer was providing 
benefits for retired directors prior to January 1, 1994, would be eligible for benefits upon 
completion of 12 years of service. The law does allow for the extension of benefits to retired 
directors providing public funds are not utilized. However, JPIA plans do not permit “self-pay” by 

any enrollees. 
 
DENTAL AND VISION REQUIREMENTS 
For any retiree that is offered continuation of dental and/or vision benefits, the employer must 
pay at least 50% of the retiree-only portion. The employer may not pay the premiums to ACWA 
JPIA and have the retiree reimburse the employer for the full cost of coverage. This is 
considered “self-pay” which is prohibited.  
 
MEDICARE ENTITLED RETIREES 
Effective January 1, 2015, enrollment in Medicare Part A and Medicare Part B is required 
upon a retiree's eligibility for the plans. This must occur when both criteria are met: Medicare 
eligible and retired. This is true for both Anthem and Kaiser retiree plans. This also applies to 
spouses of retirees. 
  
Anthem Blue Cross –The ACWA JPIA sponsored Anthem Blue Cross plans are not Medicare 
supplement plans.  Anthem Blue Cross will coordinate benefits with Medicare. Upon enrollment 
in Medicare Parts A and B, retirees will also be enrolled in Medicare Part D for prescription 
coverage as part of the ACWA JPIA retiree with Medicare health plans. No action is required on 
the part of the retiree, unless the retiree wishes to waive all prescription benefits. Medicare 
permits enrollment in only one Part D plan, so the retiree may choose to keep existing Part D 
coverage and waive ACWA JPIA prescription coverage. 
 
The Anthem Blue Cross “Coordination of Benefits” definition is as outlined in the Evidence of 

Coverage booklet.  

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text
10



 

  Revised 7/30/2017 

 
 
Kaiser – Retirees choosing Kaiser for post-employment medical coverage will be enrolled in the 
same plan design as actives. Upon enrollment in Medicare Parts A and B, enrolled retirees 
should assign Medicare benefits to Kaiser and complete a Kaiser Senior Advantage Application. 
Should the retiree not assign Medicare benefits and complete the Senior Advantage Application 
form, the "unassigned" Medicare premium will apply. This premium is typically about three times 
the premium for an active Kaiser plan. Should "unassigned" rates apply, the employer has the 
option to cease offering the benefit, continue to offer the benefit and make the retiree 
responsible for the increased premium or pay the higher "unassigned" rate on behalf of the 
retiree. 

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text
11

ssmith
Typewritten Text



2017 2018
Same $1,500 Deductible $1,500 Deductible

Change $2,600 Out-of-Pocket Maximum $2,700 Out-of-Pocket Maximum

Must be 
equal per 

CA law

Same Co-pays: vary by service Co-pays: vary by service

2017 2018
Same $3,000 Deductible $3,000 Deductible

Change
$5,200 family 

Out-of-Pocket Maximum
$5,400 family 

Out-of-Pocket Maximum

Change
$2,600 is the most any individual can 

contribute toward the family Deductible 
or family Out-of-Pocket Maximum. 

$2,700 is the most any individual can 
contribute toward the family Deductible 

or family Out-of-Pocket Maximum. 

Same Co-pays: vary by service Co-pays: vary by service

Federal 
minimum 

family 
deductible

Revised 7/31/2017

Health Savings Account (HSA) - Triple-tax-advantaged account employers and employees may contribute to, for 
the purpose of funding medical, dental, and vision expenses. Federal tax free for (1) contributions, (2) investment 
growth, and (3) withdrawals.

Background

ACWA JPIA Kaiser Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP) 

2018 Plan Changes

Definitions
Deductible - You must pay 100% of the cost for medical and prescription expenses until you have met the Deductible 
amount. The only exception is for Preventive Care, which is provided at no cost.

Co-pay - A flat dollar amount for a medical service or prescription. Only applicable in CDHP after  Deductible has 
been met.

Out-of-Pocket Maximum - This is the most you will pay for covered medical and prescription expenses in a plan 
year. The Deductible and co-pays paid both apply toward meeting the Out-of-Pocket Maximum.

~ Participant typically pays plan expenses using funds in a Health Savings Account.
~ Fully insured and HMO plans, such as Kaiser CDHP, are subject to California law. However, JPIA's self-
   funded Anthem CDHP is subject to Federal oversight only. No changes will apply to Anthem CDHP in 2018.
~ Co-pays totaling $1,200/single or $2,400/family would be needed to reach the Single or Family Out-of-Pocket
   Maximum. This is unlikely to occur, given the low co-pay amounts.

California Assembly Bill 1305 was passed in 2016 to limit the amount a single individual in a family 
would pay toward the Out-of-Pocket Maximum, beginning in 2017. The intent of the California law was 
to provide equal protection to individuals whether enrolled as a single or as part of a family. However, in 
order to contribute pre-tax money to a Health Savings Account, the IRS (federal) has specific 
requirements for high deductible plan designs. If enrolled at employee + 1 or more, the family minimum 
deductible must be met before benefits can be payable to anyone on the plan, regardless of any one 
individual's expenses. In 2018, the minimum family deductible for HSA eligibility will change from 
$2,600 to $2,700. 

Kaiser CDHP Single Coverage

Kaiser CDHP Two-Party/Family Coverage

Notes

ssmith
Typewritten Text
12

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text



 

Effective 1/1/2018 

Anthem Rate Region Map 

 

 

  

13



ACWA JPIA 2018 Medical Plans

Anthem Blue Cross
Deductible

(Indiv./Family) Dr. ER Hospital X-ray, lab Prescription
Medical Max
Out of Pocket

RX  Max
Out of Pocket

Classic PPO $200/600 $15 $50 Ded/10%/20%1 20% $5/20/50 $2,000/4,000 $5,600/10,200
Advantage PPO $500/1,000 $20 $50 Ded/20% 20% $5/20/50 $3,000/6,000 $3,600/7,200
CalCare HMO None $10 $50 $0 N/A $5/20/50 $500/1,500 $6,100/11,700
Value HMO None $30 $150 $250 N/A $10/20/502 $2,500/5,000 $4,100/8,200

 Consumer Driven Health Plan3 $1,500/3,000 Deductible, then 20% coinsurance Ded/$10/20/40 $2,500/4,000

Kaiser
HMO with Chiro None $10 $50 $0 N/A $5/15
HMO with Chiro & Optical None $10 $50 $0 N/A $5/15
Senior Advantage with Chiro None $20 $50 $0 N/A $10/25
Value HMO with Chiro None $30 $150 $250 N/A $10/20

 Consumer Driven Health Plan3 $1,500/3,000 4 $20 $100 $250 copays $10/30

Important Notes
1 Facility charge is covered at 90%. Physician charge covered at 80%. Both are subject to deductible.
2 An annual $100 drug deductible applies to medications on this plan.
3 Member is responsible for 100% of medical & prescription costs (excluding Preventive Care) until deductible is met. After deductible is met, copays and/or coinsurance apply.
4 An individual  enrolled in family  coverage will have a maximum liability of $2,700 toward the family deductible and family maximum out of pocket.

This is a very brief plan comparison of IN-NETWORK benefits. Plan summaries are available at www.acwajpia.com.

The Evidence of Coverage prevails in the event of a discrepancy.

ACWA JPIA, CA License #0I72324 Revised 7/31/2017

$2,500/5,000
$2,700/5,400 4

Combined Max OOP

$1,500/3,000
$1,500/3,000
$1,500/3,000

ssmith
Typewritten Text
14



ACWA JPIA 2018 Medical Plan Monthly Rates

LOS ANGELES AREA
Los Angeles, San Bernardino & Ventura Counties

Standard Rates Incentive Rates (-4%) Rate
Anthem Blue Cross Single Two-Party Family Single Two-Party Family Change
Classic PPO 836.61 1,704.69 2,291.67 803.55 1,636.89 2,200.40 4.50%

Classic PPO, Retired w/Medicare 565.66 1,149.22 1,588.30 543.43 1,103.65 1,525.16 4.50%

Advantage PPO 704.34 1,433.52 1,926.58 676.56 1,376.57 1,849.91 4.50%

Advantage PPO, Retired w/Medicare 476.73 966.93 1,335.75 458.06 928.65 1,282.72 4.50%

CalCare HMO 732.32 1,454.78 1,951.02 703.42 1,396.98 1,873.37 8.26%

CalCare HMO, Retired w/Medicare 554.58 1,099.32 1,563.04 532.79 1,055.75 1,500.92 8.26%

Value HMO 674.53 1,339.18 1,795.72 647.94 1,286.01 1,724.29 8.26%

Value HMO, Retired w/Medicare 511.00 1,012.17 1,438.79 490.96 972.08 1,381.64 8.26%

Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP) 671.27 1,365.73 1,835.31 644.81 1,311.49 1,762.29 4.50%

CDHP, Retired w/Medicare 454.50 921.35 1,272.62 436.72 884.90 1,222.11 4.50%

Kaiser South Single Two-Party Family Incentive applies to Anthem only Change
HMO with Chiro 607.82 1,204.96 1,700.90 13.05%

HMO with Chiro & Optical 618.70 1,227.52 1,732.83 13.05%

Senior Advantage with Chiro 190.59 371.29 867.23 8.52%

Value HMO with Chiro 554.70 1,099.53 1,551.74 13.08%

Consumer Driven Health Plan 433.60 857.32 1,209.00 13.04%

If you have questions or would like more information please email benefits@acwajpia.com. Revised 8/3/2017

ssmith
Typewritten Text
15



ACWA JPIA 2018 Medical Plan Monthly Rates

OTHER SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
Fresno, Imperial, Inyo, Kern, Kings, Madera, Orange, Riverside, San Diego, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara & Tulare Counties

Standard Rates Incentive Rates (-4%) Rate
Anthem Blue Cross Single Two-Party Family Single Two-Party Family Change
 Classic PPO 887.44     1,808.87  2,431.94  852.34     1,736.91  2,335.06  4.50%

 Classic PPO, Retired w/Medicare 565.66     1,149.22  1,588.30  543.43     1,103.65  1,525.16  4.50%

 Advantage PPO 747.03     1,521.03  2,044.41  717.54     1,460.59  1,963.03  4.50%

 Advantage PPO, Retired w/Medicare 476.73     966.93     1,335.75  458.06     928.65     1,282.72  4.50%

 CalCare HMO 789.88     1,569.85  2,105.63  758.68     1,507.46  2,021.80  8.26%

 CalCare HMO, Retired w/Medicare 554.58     1,099.32  1,563.04  532.79     1,055.75  1,500.92  8.26%

 Value HMO 727.48     1,445.06  1,937.97  698.78     1,387.65  1,860.85  8.26%

 Value HMO, Retired w/Medicare 511.00     1,012.17  1,438.79  490.96     972.08     1,381.64  8.26%

 Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP) 711.93     1,449.07  1,947.53  683.84     1,391.51  1,870.02  4.50%

 CDHP, Retired w/Medicare 454.50     921.35     1,272.62  436.72     884.90     1,222.11  4.50%

Kaiser Kaiser South Kaiser North (Fresno area, zip based) South North
 HMO with Chiro 607.82     1,204.96  1,700.90  723.86     1,437.82  2,030.41  13.05% 4.64%

 HMO with Chiro & Optical 618.70     1,227.52  1,732.83  736.74     1,463.59  2,066.87  13.05% 4.64%

 Senior Advantage with Chiro 190.59     371.29     867.23     298.80     597.59     1,200.87  8.52% 3.58%

 Value HMO with Chiro 554.70     1,099.53  1,551.74  668.72     1,327.58  1,874.43  13.08% 4.66%

 Consumer Driven Health Plan 433.60     857.32     1,209.00  547.38     1,084.87  1,531.00  13.04% 4.61%

If you have questions or would like more information please email benefits@acwajpia.com. Revised 8/3/2017

ssmith
Typewritten Text
16



ACWA JPIA 2018 Medical Plan Monthly Rates

SACRAMENTO
Amador, El Dorado, Nevada, Placer, Sacramento, San Joaquin, Sutter, Yolo & Yuba Counties

Standard Rates Incentive Rates (-4%) Rate
Anthem Blue Cross Single Two-Party Family Single Two-Party Family Change
 Classic PPO 945.02      1,926.92   2,590.87   907.61      1,850.24   2,487.63   4.50%

 Classic PPO, Retired w/Medicare 565.66      1,149.22   1,588.30   543.43      1,103.65   1,525.16   4.50%

 Advantage PPO 795.40      1,620.19   2,177.91   763.98      1,555.78   2,091.19   4.50%

 Advantage PPO, Retired w/Medicare 476.73      966.93      1,335.75   458.06      928.65      1,282.72   4.50%

 CalCare HMO 990.42      1,970.96   2,725.99   951.20      1,892.52   2,617.34   8.26%

 CalCare HMO, Retired w/Medicare 554.58      1,099.32   1,563.04   532.79      1,055.75   1,500.92   8.26%

 Value HMO 911.98      1,814.08   2,508.70   875.90      1,741.91   2,408.75   8.26%

 Value HMO, Retired w/Medicare 511.00      1,012.17   1,438.79   490.96      972.08      1,381.64   8.26%

 Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP) 757.99      1,543.51   2,074.67   728.07      1,482.16   1,992.08   4.50%

 CDHP, Retired w/Medicare 454.50      921.35      1,272.62   436.72      884.90      1,222.11   4.50%

Kaiser North Single Two-Party Family Incentive applies to Anthem only Change
 HMO with Chiro 723.86      1,437.82   2,030.41   4.64%

 HMO with Chiro & Optical 736.74      1,463.59   2,066.87   4.64%

 Senior Advantage with Chiro 298.80      597.59      1,200.87   3.58%

 Value HMO with Chiro 668.72      1,327.58   1,874.43   4.66%

 Consumer Driven Health Plan 547.38      1,084.87   1,531.00   4.61%

If you have questions or would like more information please email benefits@acwajpia.com. Revised 8/3/2017

ssmith
Typewritten Text
17



ACWA JPIA 2018 Medical Plan Monthly Rates

OTHER NORTHERN CALIFORNIA
Alpine, Butte, Calaveras, Colusa, Del Norte, Glenn, Humboldt, Lake, Lassen, Mariposa, Mendocino, Merced,

Modoc, Mono, Monterey, Plumas, San Benito, Shasta, Sierra, Siskiyou, Stanislaus, Tehama, Trinity & Tuolumne Counties

Standard Rates Incentive Rates (-4%) Rate
Anthem Blue Cross Single Two-Party Family Single Two-Party Family Change
 Classic PPO 949.51      1,936.12   2,603.25   911.92      1,859.07   2,499.52   4.50%

 Classic PPO, Retired w/Medicare 565.66      1,149.22   1,588.30   543.43      1,103.65   1,525.16   4.50%

 Advantage PPO 799.17      1,627.92   2,188.31   767.60      1,563.20   2,101.17   4.50%

 Advantage PPO, Retired w/Medicare 476.73      966.93      1,335.75   458.06      928.65      1,282.72   4.50%

 CalCare HMO 999.10      1,986.90   2,749.95   959.53      1,907.81   2,640.35   8.26%

 CalCare HMO, Retired w/Medicare 554.58      1,099.32   1,563.04   532.79      1,055.75   1,500.92   8.26%

 Value HMO 919.96      1,828.73   2,530.74   883.56      1,755.98   2,429.91   8.26%

 Value HMO, Retired w/Medicare 511.00      1,012.17   1,438.79   490.96      972.08      1,381.64   8.26%

 Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP) 761.58      1,550.87   2,084.58   731.51      1,489.23   2,001.59   4.50%

 CDHP, Retired w/Medicare 454.50      921.35      1,272.62   436.72      884.90      1,222.11   4.50%

Kaiser North Single Two-Party Family Incentive applies to Anthem only Change
 HMO with Chiro 723.86      1,437.82   2,030.41   4.64%

 HMO with Chiro & Optical 736.74      1,463.59   2,066.87   4.64%

 Senior Advantage with Chiro 298.80      597.59      1,200.87   3.58%

 Value HMO with Chiro 668.72      1,327.58   1,874.43   4.66%

 Consumer Driven Health Plan 547.38      1,084.87   1,531.00   4.61%

If you have questions or would like more information please email benefits@acwajpia.com. Revised 8/3/2017

ssmith
Typewritten Text
18



ACWA JPIA 2018 Medical Plan Monthly Rates

BAY AREA
Alameda, Amador, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Francisco, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Santa Cruz, Solano, & Sonoma Counties

Standard Rates Incentive Rates (-4%) Rate
Anthem Blue Cross Single Two-Party Family Single Two-Party Family Change
 Classic PPO 987.92      2,014.85   2,709.26   948.80      1,934.66   2,601.29   4.50%

 Classic PPO, Retired w/Medicare 565.66      1,149.22   1,588.30   543.43      1,103.65   1,525.16   4.50%

 Advantage PPO 831.43      1,694.06   2,277.36   798.57      1,626.69   2,186.66   4.50%

 Advantage PPO, Retired w/Medicare 476.73      966.93      1,335.75   458.06      928.65      1,282.72   4.50%

 CalCare HMO 1,047.54   2,085.20   2,884.21   1,006.03   2,002.19   2,769.23   8.26%

 CalCare HMO, Retired w/Medicare 554.58      1,099.32   1,563.04   532.79      1,055.75   1,500.92   8.26%

 Value HMO 964.53      1,919.18   2,654.26   926.34      1,842.81   2,548.49   8.26%

 Value HMO, Retired w/Medicare 511.00      1,012.17   1,438.79   490.96      972.08      1,381.64   8.26%

 Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP) 792.31      1,613.86   2,169.38   761.01      1,549.70   2,083.00   4.50%

 CDHP, Retired w/Medicare 454.50      921.35      1,272.62   436.72      884.90      1,222.11   4.50%

Kaiser North Single Two-Party Family Incentive applies to Anthem only Change
 HMO with Chiro 723.86      1,437.82   2,030.41   4.64%

 HMO with Chiro & Optical 736.74      1,463.59   2,066.87   4.64%

 Senior Advantage with Chiro 298.80      597.59      1,200.87   3.58%

 Value HMO with Chiro 668.72      1,327.58   1,874.43   4.66%

 Consumer Driven Health Plan 547.38      1,084.87   1,531.00   4.61%

If you have questions or would like more information please email benefits@acwajpia.com. Revised 8/3/2017

ssmith
Typewritten Text
19



ACWA JPIA 2018 Medical Plan Monthly Mixed-Medicare Rates
APPLIES TO  RETIREE COUPLES WITH ONLY ONE INDIVIDUAL ENROLLED IN MEDICARE A&B

LOS ANGELES AREA

Standard Incentive
Anthem Blue Cross Two-Party Family Two-Party Family
 Classic PPO, Mixed Medicare 1,392.39      2,020.71      1,337.09      1,940.28      
 Advantage PPO, Mixed Medicare 1,171.19      1,698.98      1,124.74      1,631.41      
 CalCare HMO, Mixed Medicare 1,277.02      1,773.27      1,226.33      1,702.74      
 Value HMO, Mixed Medicare 1,175.65      1,632.20      1,129.02      1,567.31      
 Consumer Driven Health Plan, Mixed Medicare 1,115.89      1,618.54      1,071.65      1,554.20      

OTHER SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

Standard Incentive
Anthem Blue Cross Two-Party Family Two-Party Family
 Classic PPO, Mixed Medicare 1,443.21      2,110.16      1,385.88      2,026.15      
 Advantage PPO, Mixed Medicare 1,213.88      1,774.11      1,165.72      1,703.54      
 CalCare HMO, Mixed Medicare 1,334.58      1,870.33      1,281.59      1,795.91      
 Value HMO, Mixed Medicare 1,228.60      1,721.49      1,179.85      1,653.03      
 Consumer Driven Health Plan, Mixed Medicare 1,156.55      1,690.10      1,110.68      1,622.89      

SACRAMENTO

Standard Incentive
Anthem Blue Cross Two-Party Family Two-Party Family
 Classic PPO, Mixed Medicare 1,500.80      2,211.50      1,441.16      2,123.44      
 Advantage PPO, Mixed Medicare 1,262.25      1,859.24      1,212.16      1,785.27      
 CalCare HMO, Mixed Medicare 1,535.12      2,290.14      1,474.11      2,198.93      
 Value HMO, Mixed Medicare 1,413.10      2,107.72      1,356.97      2,023.81      
 Consumer Driven Health Plan, Mixed Medicare 1,202.61      1,771.18      1,154.90      1,700.73      

BAY AREA

Standard Incentive
Anthem Blue Cross Two-Party Family Two-Party Family
 Classic PPO, Mixed Medicare 1,543.69      2,287.00      1,482.34      2,195.92      
 Advantage PPO, Mixed Medicare 1,298.28      1,922.66      1,246.75      1,846.15      
 CalCare HMO, Mixed Medicare 1,592.24      2,391.24      1,528.94      2,295.99      
 Value HMO, Mixed Medicare 1,465.65      2,200.73      1,407.42      2,113.10      
 Consumer Driven Health Plan, Mixed Medicare 1,236.93      1,831.58      1,187.85      1,758.71      

OTHER NORTHERN CALIFORNIA

Standard Incentive
Anthem Blue Cross Two-Party Family Two-Party Family
 Classic PPO, Mixed Medicare 1,505.28      2,219.40      1,445.47      2,131.02      
 Advantage PPO, Mixed Medicare 1,266.02      1,865.88      1,215.77      1,791.64      
 CalCare HMO, Mixed Medicare 1,543.80      2,305.43      1,482.44      2,213.61      
 Value HMO, Mixed Medicare 1,421.08      2,121.78      1,364.63      2,037.31      
 Consumer Driven Health Plan, Mixed Medicare 1,206.20      1,777.50      1,158.35      1,706.79      

Kaiser North Two-Party Family Incentive Rates apply to
 Senior Advantage, Mixed Medicare 1,022.65      1,615.23      Anthem plans only.

Kaiser South Two-Party Family
 Senior Advantage, Mixed Medicare 788.16         1,284.07      

Family rates are for one adult with Medicare, one adult and child who do not. Contact us with unique scenarios.
If you have questions or would like more information please email benefits@acwajpia.com. Revised 8/3/2017

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text
20



ACWA JPIA 2018 Delta Dental PPO Rates
No change in 2018 rates

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
ACWA 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
ACWA-JPIA 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Alameda County Water District 2453 5555 73.92 167.90 167.90
Alpaugh Irrigation District 399 1312 33.72 69.61 115.47
Alta Irrigation District 399 1309 46.23 96.37 160.46
Amador Water Authority 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
American River Flood Control 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Angiola Water District 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Antelope Valley-East Kern WA 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Aromas Water District 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Banta-Carbona ID 399 1001 31.20 60.16 97.81
Bay Area Water Supply 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Bella Vista WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Belridge WSD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Berrenda Mesa WD 399 1312 33.72 69.61 115.47
Big Bear City CSD 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Big Bear MWD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Bodega Bay PUD 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Bolinas Community PUD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Borrego WD 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Brookstrail Township CSD 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Browns Valley ID 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Buena Vista WSD 399 3003 32.84 64.95 119.78
Byron-Bethany ID 399 1304 31.20 64.21 106.41
Cachuma Oper & Maint Board 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Calaveras CWD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Calaveras PUD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Calleguas MWD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Camrosa WD 399 1312 33.72 69.61 115.47
Carlsbad MWD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Carmichael WD 399 1003 31.20 64.06 114.59
Carpinteria Valley WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Casitas MWD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Castaic Lake WA 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Castroville WD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Cawelo WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Centerville CSD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Central Basin MWD 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Central WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Channel Island Beach CSD 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Chino Basin Desalter Authority 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Chino Basin WCD 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Chowchilla WD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90

21



ACWA JPIA 2018 Delta Dental PPO Rates
No change in 2018 rates

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
City of Buellton 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
City of San Juan Bautista 399 1312 33.72 69.61 115.47
City of Tehachapi 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Clearlake Oaks CWD 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Coastside CWD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Consolidated ID 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Contra Costa WD (Clerical) 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Contra Costa WD (Mgmt) 399 1015 47.94 95.36 169.90
Corcoran ID 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Crestline Village WD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Crestline-Lake Arrowhead WA 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Del Paso Manor WD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Del Puerto WD 399 3307 47.86 101.16 182.44
Delano-Earlimart ID 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Delhi County WD 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Desert WA 399 1312 33.72 69.61 115.47
Diablo Water District 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
East Contra Costa ID 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
East Orange CWD 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
El Toro WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Florin Resource Conservation Dist. 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Elsinore Valley MWD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Elsinore Valley MWD (Union) 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Exeter Irrigation District 399 1302 33.72 73.50 132.25
Fair Oaks WD 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Fallbrook PUD 399 1013 33.72 69.09 122.90
Firebaugh Canal WD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Foothill MWD 399 1302 33.72 73.50 132.25
Frazier Park PUD 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Fresno Metro Flood Control Dist. 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Friant Power Authority 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Friant Water Authority 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Glenn Colusa ID 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Golden Hills CSD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Goleta WD 399 3302 35.36 74.40 137.45
Grassland WD 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Greenfield CWD 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Helix WD 399 1302 33.72 73.50 132.25
Hidden Valley Lake CSD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Hi-Desert WD (Actives) 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Humboldt Bay MWD (Actives) 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Humboldt CSD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Idyllwild WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12

22



ACWA JPIA 2018 Delta Dental PPO Rates
No change in 2018 rates

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
Indian Wells VWD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Irvine Ranch WD 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Ivanhoe ID 399 1312 33.72 69.61 115.47
James ID 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Joshua Basin WD 399 1309 46.23 96.37 160.46
Kanawha WD 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Kaweah Delta WCD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Kern CWA 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Kern Tulare WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Kings County Water District 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Kings River Conservation District 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Kinneloa ID 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Kirkwood Meadows PUD 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Laguna Beach CWD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Lakeside Irrigation WD 399 1312 33.72 69.61 115.47
Lakeside WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Laton Community Services District 399 1309 46.23 96.37 160.46
Le Grand CSD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Littlerock Creek ID 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Los Alamos CSD 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Lost Hills WD 399 1312 33.72 69.61 115.47
Madera ID 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Madera WD 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Madera/Chowchilla WPA 399 1302 33.72 73.50 132.25
Malaga CWD 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Mammoth CWD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Marina Coast WD 399 1312 33.72 69.61 115.47
Mariposa PUD 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
McKinleyville 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Mid-Peninsula WD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Mission Hills CSD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Mojave PUD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Mojave WA 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Montara Water & Sanitary District 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Montecito Sanitary District 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Montecito Water District 399 1309 46.23 96.37 160.46
Mountain Gate CSD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Nevada ID 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Newhall CWD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
North Coast CWD 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
North Delta Water Agency 399 1309 46.23 96.37 160.46
North Kern WSD 399 1302 33.72 73.50 132.25
Oakdale ID 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90

23



ACWA JPIA 2018 Delta Dental PPO Rates
No change in 2018 rates

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
Orange Cove ID 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Orange CWD 399 1309 46.23 96.37 160.46
Orchard Dale WD 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Orland-Artois WD 399 1302 33.72 73.50 132.25
Orosi PUD 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Pajaro Valley WMA 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Pajaro/Sunny Mesa CSD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Palm Ranch ID 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Palmdale WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Panoche WD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Paradise ID 399 1003 31.20 64.06 114.59
Patterson ID 399 1001 31.20 60.16 97.81
Pebble Beach CSD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Planada CSD 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Pleasant Valley County Water District 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Porterville ID 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Princeton-Codora-Glenn ID 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Quartz Hill CWD 399 1003 31.20 64.06 114.59
Rancho California WD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Rand Communities WD 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Reclamation District #1000 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Reclamation District #1004 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Reclamation District #108 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Redwood Valley CWD 399 1307 46.23 100.27 177.24
Rincon Del Diablo MWD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Rio Alto Water District 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Rosamond CSD 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Rosedale-Rio Bravo WSD 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Rowland WD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
San Andreas SD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
San Benito CWD 399 1302 33.72 73.50 132.25
San Bernardino VMWD 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
San Bernardino VWCD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
San Francisquito Creek JPA 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
San Gorgonio Pass WA 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
San Juan Water District 399 3307 47.86 101.16 182.44
San Luis & Delta-Mendota WA 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Santa Ana Watershed PA 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Santa Clara VWD 2303 0002 148.38 148.38 148.38
Santa Clara VWD (Retirees) 10685 0001 76.05 131.91 204.59
Santa Margarita WD 444 5555 45.77 104.02 195.98
Santa Ynez River WCD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Saucelito ID 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12

24



ACWA JPIA 2018 Delta Dental PPO Rates
No change in 2018 rates

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
Scotts Valley WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Semitropic WSD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Serrano WD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Shafter-Wasco ID 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Solano County WA 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Soquel Creek WD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
South Feather Water & Power 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
South Montebello ID 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
South Sutter WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Southern San Joaquin MUD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Stockton East WD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Stone Corral ID 399 3307 47.86 101.16 182.44
Sutter Extension WD 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Tehachapi-Cummings CWD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Terra Bella ID 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
The West Side ID 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Thermalito ID 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Three Valleys MWD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Tranquility ID 399 1009 46.23 90.21 147.39
Tri-Dam Project 399 1001 31.20 60.16 97.81
Tulare ID 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
Tulare Lake Basin WSD 399 1312 33.72 69.61 115.47
Tulelake ID 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Tuolumne Utilities District 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Twentynine Palms WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
United WCD 399 1003 31.20 64.06 114.59
Vallecitos WD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Valley CWD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Valley of the Moon WD 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Vandenberg Village CSD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Ventura River CWD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Vista ID 399 1002 33.72 69.09 122.90
Walnut Valley WD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Water Replenshment Dist of So CA 399 1001 31.20 60.16 97.81
Weaverville CSD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
West Basin MWD 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
West Kern WD 399 3007 47.86 94.96 169.30
West Stanislaus ID 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
West Valley WD 399 3002 35.36 69.99 128.10
Western Canal WD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Westborough WD 399 1007 46.23 94.11 164.17
Willow County WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12
Yorba Linda WD 399 1012 33.72 65.20 106.12

25



ACWA JPIA 2018 Delta Dental PPO Rates
No change in 2018 rates

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
Yuima MWD 399 1312 33.72 69.61 115.47

Delta Dental plan summaries are available at www.acwajpia.com. Revised 7/21/2017

26



ACWA JPIA 2018 DeltaCare USA HMO Rates
No change in 2018 rates

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
ACWA 02017 00030 26.93 43.10 62.46
ACWA JPIA 02017 00032 26.93 43.10 62.46
Berrenda Mesa Water District 02017 00001 26.93 43.10 62.46
Carlsbad Municipal Water District 02017 00002 26.93 43.10 62.46
East Contra Costa Irrigation District02017 00036 26.93 43.10 62.46
Helix Water District 02017 00005 26.93 43.10 62.46
Idyllwild Water District 02017 00024 26.93 43.10 62.46
Kern County Water Agency 02017 00027 26.93 43.10 62.46
Laguna Beach County Water District02017 00007 26.93 43.10 62.46
Orange County Water District 02017 00011 26.93 43.10 62.46
Orland-Artois Water District 02017 00012 26.93 43.10 62.46
Palmdale Water District 02017 00013 26.93 43.10 62.46
Pescadero Reclamation District #205802017 00031 26.93 43.10 62.46
Rosamond Community Service District02017 00029 26.93 43.10 62.46
Santa Margarita Water District 02017 00017 26.93 43.10 62.46
Three Valleys Municipal Water District02017 00028 26.93 43.10 62.46
Tulare Irrigation District 02017 00035 26.93 43.10 62.46
Vista Irrigation District 02017 00034 26.93 43.10 62.46
Walnut Valley Water District 02017 00021 26.93 43.10 62.46
West Valley Water District 02017 00020 26.93 43.10 62.46
Yorba Linda Water District 02017 00023 26.93 43.10 62.46

DeltaCare plan summary available at www.acwajpia.com. Revised 7/21/2017

27



ACWA JPIA 2018 VSP Vision Rates
No change in 2018 rates

 Composite Rate 
(for EE + all Deps) -or- 

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
ACWA 022 3051
Alameda County Water District 022 4011
Alpaugh Irrigation District 022 3029 11.70 18.40 35.54
Alta Irrigation District 022 3043
Amador Water Authority 022 3009
American River Flood Control 022 3041
Angiola Water District 022 3009
Antelope Valley-East Kern WA 022 3009
Aromas Water District 022 3009
Banta-Carbona ID 022 3009
Bay Area Water Supply & 022 4011
Belridge WSD 022 4029
Berrenda Mesa WD 022 4029
Big Bear City CSD 022 3043
Big Bear City CSD (Safety) 022 4029
Bodega Bay PUD 022 3009
Borrego WD 022 4005
Browns Valley ID 022 3043
Buena Vista WSD 022 3043
Byron-Bethany ID 022 3043
Cachuma Oper & Maint Board 022 3043
Calaveras CWD 022 3043
Calaveras PUD 022 3043
Calleguas MWD 022 4029
Camrosa WD 022 3051
Carlsbad MWD 022 4005
Carmichael WD 022 4005
Carpinteria Valley WD 022 3043
Casitas MWD 022 3043
Castaic Lake WA 022 3043
Castroville WD 022 4005
Centerville CSD 022 3051
Central Basin MWD 022 4029
Central California ID 022 3043
Central WD 022 3051
Channel Island Beach CSD 022 3043

17.21
18.56

17.21
21.18
18.56

18.56
21.18
17.21
28.65
28.65
18.56
18.56

28.65
18.56
18.56
18.56
18.56

17.21

18.56

21.18
18.56
21.18
23.66

23.26

18.56
23.66
24.40
23.66
23.66
23.66
23.66
23.26
21.18

18.56
28.65

28



ACWA JPIA 2018 VSP Vision Rates
No change in 2018 rates

 Composite Rate 
(for EE + all Deps) -or- 

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
Chino Basin Desalter Authority 022 3043
Chino Basin WCD 022 4029
Chowchilla WD 022 3043
City of Buellton 022 3043
City of San Juan Bautista 022 3029 11.70 18.40 35.54
City of Tehachapi 022 4029
Clearlake Oaks CWD 022 4029
Coastside CWD 022 3019
Consolidated ID 022 3043
Contra Costa WD 022 3051
Crestline-Lake Arrowhead WA 022 4005
Del Paso Manor WD 022 3009
Del Puerto WD 022 3051
Delano-Earlimart ID 022 3009
Delhi County WD 022 3043
Desert WA (Hired before 5/1/2007) 022 3043
Desert WA (Hired after 5/1/2007) 022 3029 11.70 18.40 35.54
East Contra Costa ID 022 3043
East Orange CWD 022 4011
El Toro WD 022 3051
Elk Grove Water District 022 4011
Elsinore Valley MWD 022 4011
Exeter Irrigation District 022 3051
Fair Oaks WD 022 4035
Fallbrook PUD 022 3051
Firebaugh Canal WD 022 4005
Foothill MWD 022 3043
Forestville WD 022 4033
Frazier Park PUD 022 4011
Fresno Metro Flood Control Dist. 022 3043
Friant Power Authority 022 3055
Friant Water Authority 022 3043
Golden Hills CSD 022 3051
Goleta WD 022 3009
Grassland WD 022 3043
Helix WD 022 3043

18.56

23.66
18.56
18.56

23.26
18.56
15.63
18.56
17.21

24.25
17.21
28.65
18.56
26.85

18.56
23.26
17.21
23.26
23.26
17.21

23.66
17.21
23.66
18.56
18.56

21.18
21.32
18.56
17.21
28.65

21.18
18.56

21.18

18.56

29



ACWA JPIA 2018 VSP Vision Rates
No change in 2018 rates

 Composite Rate 
(for EE + all Deps) -or- 

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
Hi-Desert WD 022 3051
Hi-Desert WD (Retirees) 022 3047 10.91 21.35 37.14
Humboldt Bay MWD 022 3043
Humboldt CSD 022 3055
Idyllwild WD 022 3009
Indian Wells VWD 022 3009
Ivanhoe ID 022 3043
James ID 022 3051
Joshua Basin WD 022 4017 13.27 21.01 40.77
Kanawha WD 022 3043
Kaweah Delta WCD 022 3043
Kern CWA 022 3019
Kings River Conservation District 022 3055
Kinneloa ID 022 3043
Kirkwood Meadows PUD 022 3043
La Habra Heights CWD 022 3043
La Puente Valley CWD 022 3009
Laguna Beach CWD 022 3051
Laguna ID 022 3051
Lakeside Irrigation WD 022 3051
Laton Community Services District 022 4017 13.27 21.01 40.77
Le Grand CSD 022 3051
Littlerock Creek ID 022 3009
Los Alamos CSD 022 4029
Lost Hills WD 022 4029
Madera ID 022 3019
Madera/Chowchilla WPA 022 3019
Malaga CWD 022 3043
Marina Coast WD 022 3051
Mid-Peninsula WD 022 3019
Mission Springs WD 022 3043
Mojave PUD 022 3043
Mojave WA 022 3009
Montara Water & Sanitary District 022 4005
Montecito WD 022 3029 11.70 18.40 35.54
Mountain Gate CSD 022 3009

17.21

17.21
23.66
21.18

18.56
18.56
23.66
28.65

21.32
21.32
18.56
17.21
21.32

23.66

18.56
18.56

23.66
17.21
17.21

21.18

18.56
18.56
21.32
15.63

18.56

18.56
15.63
23.66
23.66
18.56
17.21

17.21

30



ACWA JPIA 2018 VSP Vision Rates
No change in 2018 rates

 Composite Rate 
(for EE + all Deps) -or- 

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
MWD of Orange County 022 3003
Nevada ID 022 3055
Newhall CWD 022 3055
North Coast CWD 022 3043
North Delta Water Agency 022 3029
North Kern WSD 022 3001
Oakdale ID 022 3019
Olivenhain MWD 022 3051
Orange Cove ID 022 3009
Orange CWD 022 3043
Orchard Dale WD 022 4029
Orland-Artois WD 022 3051
Orosi PUD 022 3043 18.56 1.43 1.43
Pajaro Valley WMA 022 3043
Pajaro/Sunny Mesa CSD 022 3009
Palm Ranch ID 022 3051
Palmdale WD 022 4033
Panoche WD 022 3043
Paradise ID 022 3023
Patterson ID 022 3043
Pebble Beach CSD 022 3009
Pico WD 022 4011
Planada CSD 022 3009
Pleasant Valley County Water District 022 3043
Porterville ID 022 3009
Quartz Hill CWD 022 4029
Rainbow MWD 022 3043 18.56 1.43 1.43
Ramona Municipal WD 022 3009
Rancho California WD 022 3019
Reclamation District #1000 022 3043
Reclamation District #1004 022 4029
Reclamation District #108 022 3009
Redwood Valley CWD 022 3055
Rincon Del Diablo MWD 022 3051
Rio Alto Water District 022 3051
Rosamond CSD 022 3051

18.56

23.66
21.18

21.32

21.18
23.66
15.63
17.21
17.21
17.21

23.26

17.21

18.56
23.66
17.21
26.85
18.56

18.56

20.21

23.66

23.66

23.66

18.56

14.76

11.70
14.76

15.63
15.63
18.56

21.32
17.21
23.66
18.56
21.18

31



ACWA JPIA 2018 VSP Vision Rates
No change in 2018 rates

 Composite Rate 
(for EE + all Deps) -or- 

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
Rowland WD 022 4029
San Andreas SD 022 4029
San Bernardino VWCD 022 4033
San Francisquito Creek JPA 022 3009
San Gabriel CWD 022 3009 23.66 1.43 1.43
San Juan Water District 022 3043
San Luis & Delta-Mendota WA 022 3009
Santa Ana Watershed PA 022 3009
Santa Clara VWD 022 3009
Santa Clara VWD (Retirees) 022 3015
Santa Margarita WD 022 3043
Santa Ynez River WCD 022 3051
Saucelito ID 022 3009
Scotts Valley WD 022 3043
Semitropic WSD 022 3043
Serrano WD 022 3055
Shafter-Wasco ID 022 3043
Soquel Creek WD 022 3043
South Feather Water & Power 022 3009 23.66 1.43 1.43
South Montebello ID 022 3009
South San Joaquin ID 022 3009
South Tahoe PUD 022 3009
Stockton East WD 022 4011
Sutter Extension WD 022 3043
Tehachapi-Cummings CWD 022 3009
Terra Bella ID 022 3051
Three Valleys MWD 022 3051
Tranquility ID 022 3043
Tri-Dam Project 022 4005
Tulare ID 022 3043
Tulelake ID 022 4029
Tuolumne Utilities District 022 3051
Twentynine Palms WD 022 3051 17.21 1.43 1.43
United WCD 022 3043
Vallecitos WD 022 3051
Valley CWD 022 4011

23.66
23.66
23.66

17.21

21.18
21.18
26.85
23.66

18.56

18.56

12.77

23.66
23.66
23.66
23.26
18.56

23.66
18.56
18.56

18.56
18.56

15.63

21.18
17.21

18.56
17.21
23.26

23.66
17.21
17.21
18.56
28.65
18.56

32



ACWA JPIA 2018 VSP Vision Rates
No change in 2018 rates

 Composite Rate 
(for EE + all Deps) -or- 

Member Agency Group  Division Single 2-Party Family
Valley of the Moon WD 022 3043
Vandenberg Village CSD 022 3051
Ventura River CWD 022 3051
Walnut Valley WD 022 3041
West Stanislaus ID 022 4029
West Valley WD 022 3051
Westborough WD 022 3043
Western Canal WD 022 4033
Wheeler Ridge-Maricopa WSD 022 3051
Willow County WD 022 3009
Yolo County FC & WCD 022 3043 18.56 1.43 1.43
Yuima MWD 022 3009
VSP plan summaries are available at www.acwajpia.com.

23.66

21.18
17.21
18.56

17.21

17.21
17.21
24.40

18.56

23.66

26.85

33



ACWA JPIA 2018 Employee Assistance Program
No change in 2018 rates

Rate
Per Employee Per Month $2.35

Participating Agencies
ACWA Mojave Water Agency
ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority Montecito Sanitary District
Amador Water Agency Montecito Water District
American River Flood Control District Monterey Peninsula Water Management District
Antelope Valley East Kern Water Agency Newhall County Water District
Aromas Water District North Coast County Water District
Bay Area Water Supply & Conservation District Orchard Dale Water District
Belridge Water Storage District Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency
Bolinas Community Public Utility District Palmdale Water District
Browns Valley Irrigation District Paradise Irrigation District
Byron Bethany Irrigation District Pebble Beach Community Services District
Cachuma Operation and Maint. Board Planada Community Services District
Calaveras County Water District Quartz Hill Water District
Calleguas Municipal Water District Redwood Valley County Water District
Carmichael Water District Rio Linda/Elverta Community Water District
Carpinteria Valley Water District Rowland Water District
Casitas Municipal Water District Sacramento Suburban Water District
Castaic Lake Water Agency San Andreas Sanitary District
Castroville Community Services District San Benito County Water District
City of Buellton San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water Dist.
City of San Juan Bautista San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation Dist
Clearlake Oaks County Water District San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority
Coastside County Water District San Juan Water District
Del Paso Manor Water District San Luis and Delta Mendota Water Authority
Del Puerto Water District Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority
Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District Santa Margarita Water District
Fair Oaks Water District Scotts Valley Water District
Florin Resource Conservation District Semitropic Water Service District
Foothill Municipal Water District Serrano Water District
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District Solano Irrigation District
Golden Hills Community Services District Soquel Creek Water District
Hi-Desert Water District South San Joaquin Irrigation District
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Stockton East Water District
Indian Wells Valley Water District Tahoe City Public Utility District
Joshua Basin Water District Tehachapi-Cummings County Water District
Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District Three Valleys Municipal Water District 
Kern County Water Agency Tulare Irrigation District
Kings River Conservation District Tuolumne Utilities District
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District United Water Conservation District
Le Grand Community Service District Valley County Water District

34



ACWA JPIA 2018 Employee Assistance Program
No change in 2018 rates

Participating Agencies
Los Alamos Community Services District Vandenberg Village Community Services Dist
Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster Walnut Valley Water District
Mammoth Community Water District Water Replenishment District of Southern CA
Marina Coast Water District West Basin Municipal Water District
McKinleyville Community Services District West Valley Water District
Mesa Water District Western Canal Water District
Mission Hills Community Services District Western Municipal Water District
Mission Springs Water District Yolo County Flood Control and WCD

35



ACWA JPIA 2018 Basic and Supplemental Life and AD&D Plan Designs
Three additional plans available in 2018

Basic Life, AD&D New Minimum of 40 employees
2 x annual salary*, maximum of $400,000 X X
2 x annual salary*, maximum of $300,000 X
2 x annual salary*, maximum of $200,000
2 x annual salary*, maximum of $150,000
2 x annual salary*, maximum of $100,000
1.5 x annual salary*, maximum of $150,000
1.5 x annual salary*, maximum of $100,000
1.5 x annual salary*, maximum of $50,000
1 x annual salary*, maximum of $350,000 X X
1 x annual salary*, maximum of $300,000 X X
1 x annual salary*, maximum of $150,000
1 x annual salary*, maximum of $50,000
Flat $50,000
Flat $20,000
Flat $10,000
Flat $10,000 of Basic Life only, for Directors (Directors may not be covered under employee plan designs)

Contact benefits@acwajpia.com for policy information. Revised 7/31/2017

*earnings exclusive of overtime and bonus, rounded up to the next $1,000

Basic Life is guarantee issue, and not subject to medical underwriting. Supplemental Life is subject to 
medical underwriting approval by the Standard. If a member agency selects a plan design with benefits 
that are higher than any in-force, approved Supplemental Life coverage, the amount in excess of what 
was previuosly approved will be subject to medical underwriting. To increase Supplemental Life 
coverage, the employee must complete a Medical History Statement and submit it to the Standard, via 
JPIA Employee Benefits Department.

Note: To accomodate privacy concerns, the Employee Benefits Department can facilitate direct 
submission to the Standard at the employee's request.

36



ACWA JPIA 2018 Basic and Supplemental Life and AD&D
No change in 2018 rates

Basic Life, AD&D Employee Age  Monthly Per
Under 30 $0.07 $1,000 of Benefit
30 - 34 $0.08 $1,000 of Benefit
35 - 39 $0.09 $1,000 of Benefit
40 - 44 $0.14 $1,000 of Benefit
45 - 49 $0.18 $1,000 of Benefit
50 - 54 $0.26 $1,000 of Benefit
55 - 59 $0.39 $1,000 of Benefit
60 - 64 $0.57 $1,000 of Benefit
65 - 69 $0.84 $1,000 of Benefit
70 - 74 $1.24 $1,000 of Benefit

75 + $1.84 $1,000 of Benefit

Supplemental Emp. Life, AD&D Employee Age  Monthly Per
Under 30 $0.06 $1,000 of Benefit
30 - 34 $0.07 $1,000 of Benefit
35 - 39 $0.08 $1,000 of Benefit
40 - 44 $0.12 $1,000 of Benefit
45 - 49 $0.16 $1,000 of Benefit
50 - 54 $0.23 $1,000 of Benefit
55 - 59 $0.33 $1,000 of Benefit
60 - 64 $0.48 $1,000 of Benefit
65 - 69 $0.71 $1,000 of Benefit
70 - 74 $1.04 $1,000 of Benefit

75 + $1.54 $1,000 of Benefit

Dependent Life  Monthly Per

- Benefit is $1,500 spouse, $1,000 child
- Guarantee issue (no underwriting)

Flat rate per 
employee regardless 

of # of dep's
$0.33

Employee;
All eligible must enroll,
100% Employer Paid

Supplemental Spouse Life, AD&D Employee Age  Monthly Per
Under 30 $0.06 $1,000 of Benefit
30 - 34 $0.07 $1,000 of Benefit
35 - 39 $0.08 $1,000 of Benefit
40 - 44 $0.12 $1,000 of Benefit
45 - 49 $0.16 $1,000 of Benefit
50 - 54 $0.23 $1,000 of Benefit
55 - 59 $0.33 $1,000 of Benefit
60 - 64 $0.48 $1,000 of Benefit
65 - 69 $0.71 $1,000 of Benefit
70 - 74 $1.04 $1,000 of Benefit

75 + $1.54 $1,000 of Benefit

- Plan design chosen by agency
- Benefit is multiple of salary with cap
- Multiply age-based monthly rates by 
  $1,000 of coverage
- Guarantee issue (no underwriting)
- 100% employer paid

- Benefit amount mirrors Basic Life 
  and AD&D
- Subject to medical underwriting by 
  Standard
- 100% employee paid

- Benefit amount is 50% of Voluntary 
  Employee Life
- Employee must be enrolled in 
  Voluntary Employee Life
- Subject to medical underwriting
   by Standard
- 100% employee paid

37



ACWA JPIA 2018 Basic and Supplemental Life and AD&D
No change in 2018 rates

Supplemental Child Life, AD&D  Monthly Per
- Benefit amount is $5,000
- Employee must be enrolled in 
   Voluntary Employee Life
- Subject to medical underwriting
   by Standard

Flat rate per 
employee regardless 

of # of dep's
$0.50

Employee;
Voluntary Election by 

Employee,
100% Employee Paid

Basic Life, AD&D Rates for agency-specific plans
Agency Plan Monthly Per
Amador Water Agency Basic Life, AD&D $0.24 $1,000 of Benefit
Berrenda Mesa WD Basic Life, AD&D $0.34 $1,000 of Benefit
Casitas MWD Basic Life, AD&D $0.35 $1,000 of Benefit
La Canada ID Basic Life, AD&D $0.53 $1,000 of Benefit
Mid-Peninsula WD Basic Life, AD&D $0.24 $1,000 of Benefit
Montecito SD Basic Life, AD&D $0.53 $1,000 of Benefit

After calculating rate, add $1.00 to the total for the Administrative Fee. This fee covers enrollment in all life plans.

ACWA JPIA 2018 Short & Long Term Disability
The Standard, Policy # 649299

Contact benefits@acwajpia.com for policy information. Revised 7/31/2017

Short Term Disability and Long Term Disability policies are individually underwritten by the 
Standard, and therefore have rates unique to each employer. However, members of the JPIA pool 
receive a substantial volume discount. 

STD and LTD rates remained the same for the 2018 plan year. 

There is no administrative fee for these plans, which are billed directly to the agencies by the 
Standard.

38



Changes Allowed at Open Enrollment: ACWA JPIA Medical

Active Plan
Rate 
Option

Employee 
Coverage 
Paid by:

Dependent 
Coverage 
Paid by: Open Enrollment Changes Allowed

100% 
Employer

Employees may switch medical plans. All employees and 
dependents should already be enrolled.

50%+ 
Employer Employees may add or delete dependents and/or switch 

medical plans. All employees should already be enrolled.

Medical Standard
100% 
Employer

Varies

Employees may switch medical plans, add or delete 
dependents, opt out of coverage (with proof of other 
coverage, as long as employer maintains 75%+ enrollment), 
or enroll themselves and their dependents for the first time.

Medical
(COBRA 
Enrollees)

ALL
100% 
Employee

100% 
Employee

COBRA enrollees may change plans. It is the employer's 
responsibility to notify COBRA participants of their Open 
Enrollment rights and responsibilities. 

Retiree Plan
Rate 
Option

Retiree 
Coverage 
Paid by:

Dependent 
Coverage 
Paid by: Open Enrollment Changes Allowed

Medical, Dental 
& Vision, for
Retirees at 
agencies not 
offering Retiree 
Open 
Enrollment 
(default option)

Incentive

Standard

50%+ 
Employer

25%+ 
Employer

Varies

Retirees have no Open Enrollment Rights. They cannot 
switch plans or add dependents. There are 4 changes that 
retirees can make at any time:
1) A retiree can disenroll in coverage, but cannot ever re-
enroll.
2) A retiree can drop dependents, but those dependents may 
not re-enroll (except upon loss of coverage, if employer 
written policy allows).
3) A retiree can switch from a higher cost plan to a lower cost 
plan, but cannot ever switch back.
4) If a retiree moves out of an area serviceable by an HMO, 
he/she may switch to a PPO medical plan. Retiree may 
switch back upon moving back into the HMO service area.

Medical, Dental 
& Vision, for
Retirees at 
agencies 
electing to offer 
Retiree Open 
Enrollment

Incentive

Standard

50%+ 
Employer

25%+ 
Employer

Varies

Retirees may switch medical plans. Retirees may not add 
dependents or enroll if coverage was previously waived. #1, 2 
and 4 above are changes allowable at any time. However, #3 
above is forfeited if an agency chooses to allow Retiree Open 
Enrollment.

Percent is of the lowest cost medical plan for which the employee/director or retiree is eligible. Newly enrolled dependents must 
provide proof of relationship. Acceptable documents include marriage certificate, birth certificate, California filed declaration of 
domestic partnership, adoption or court paperwork. Updated 9/14/2016

Medical Incentive
100% 
Employer

39



Changes Allowed at Open Enrollment: ACWA JPIA Dental

Active Plans
Employer 
Pays

Who is 
covered? Rate Option Open Enrollment Changes Allowed

Dental HMO & 
Dental PPO

Employee & family can change plans

1 Dental Plan Open Enrollment does not apply  

Dental HMO & 
Dental PPO

Employee & family can change plans, 
and/or add/delete dependents

1 Dental Plan Employee can add/delete dependents

Dental HMO & 
Dental PPO

Employee can change plans

1 Dental Plan Open Enrollment does not apply  

Changes Allowed at Open Enrollment: ACWA JPIA Vision

Active Plan
Employer 
Pays

Who is 
covered? Rate Option Open Enrollment Changes Allowed

Vision
100% 
Employer 
Paid

All Employees, 
All 
Dependents

Composite 
Rate 
(Same cost per 
employee regardless 
of # of dependents 
enrolled)

Open Enrollment does not apply  

Vision

100% 
Employer 
Paid for 
Employee; 
Employee 
Contributes 
for 
Dependent 
Coverage

All Employees, 
Some 
Dependents

Tiered Rate
(3 rates based on # 
erolled)

Employee can add/delete dependents

Vision
100% 
Employer 
Paid

All Employees, 
No 
Dependents

Employee 
Only Plan

Open Enrollment does not apply  

All Employees, 
No 
Dependents

Percent applies to all plans when more than one is available. Newly enrolled dependents must provide proof of relationship. 
Acceptable documents include marriage certificate, birth certificate, California filed declaration of domestic partnership, adoption or 
court paperwork. Updated 9/14/2016.

Employee 
Only Plan

Voluntary
(Refers to 
dependets. All 
employees must 
enroll.)

All Employees, 
Some 
Dependents

100% 
Employer 
Paid for 
Employee 
and 
Dependents

All Employees, 
All 
Dependents

Non-voluntary 
(Refers to 
dependets. All 
employees must 
enroll.)

100% 
Employer 
Paid for 
Employee; 
Employee 
Contributes 
for 
Dependent 
Coverage

100% 
Employer 
Paid

40



Effective 1/1/2018 

Contact List 

The ACWA JPIA Employee Benefits Team is here to help. Call us with any questions or concerns. 

ACWA JPIA Employee Benefits Team 
(800) 736-2292 Toll free 
(916) 774-7055 Local 
(916) 786-0906 Fax 
benefits@acwajpia.com 
bswifthelp@acwajpia.com 

Sandra Smith, Employee Benefits Manager 
Ben Hayden, Lead Benefits Analyst 
Sonya Baker, Benefit Systems Analyst 
Susan Offerman, Benefits Analyst II 
Allison Hartill, Benefits Analyst I 
Veronica Cobian, Benefits Administrator II 
Michelle Stites, Benefits Administrator I  

Carrier Phone Number Website 

Anthem Blue Cross 
HMO: 800-227-3641 

www.anthem.com/ca 

PPO: 800-284-2466 

Express Scripts  
(Anthem prescriptions) 

866-876-0333 use www.anthem.com/ca 

Anthem Prescription 
Customer Service for 
Retirees with Medicare 

866-470-6265 N/A 

Anthem 24/7 Nurse Line 800-700-0197 N/A 
Kaiser Permanente 800-464-4000 www.kp.org 

Delta Dental PPO 888-335-8227 www.deltadentalins.com 

DeltaCare HMO 800-422-4234 www.deltadentalins.com 
Vision Service Plan (Signature) 800-877-7195 www.vsp.com 
MHN Employee  
Assistance Program 

800-535-4985 mhn.advantageengagement.com

Standard Life & Disability 
800-368-2859   
800-628-8600 

www.standard.com 

41

mailto:benefits@acwajpia.com
mailto:bswifthelp@acwajpia.com
http://www.anthem.com/ca
http://www.anthem.com/ca
http://www.kp.org/
http://www.deltadentalins.com/
http://www.deltadentalins.com/
http://www.vsp.com/
file://///matrix/Emp_Benefits/Renewals/2016/Packet/mhn.advantageengagement.com
http://www.standard.com/


7/11/2016 Monthly Costs

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 HSA
Blue Cross Classic PPO
Employee 836.61 801.01 716.25 695.68 674.78 622.13
Employee +1 1704.69 1631.7 1457.94 1415.76 1437.99 1467.13
Employee +2 or more 2291.67 2193.41 1959.46 1902.68 1845.07 1699.74

Blue Cross Advantage PPO
Employee 704.34 674.43 603.23 585.95 545.41 503.00
Employee +1 1433.52 1372.21 1226.25 1190.82 1284.45 1183.52
Employee +2 or more 1926.58 1844.04 1647.53 1599.83 1487.93 1370.88

California Care HMO
Employee 732.32 677.2 605.7 657.52 611.99 611.99
Employee +1 1454.78 1344.54 1201.54 1305.16 1214.11 1214.11
Employee +2 or more 1951.02 1802.92 1610.81 1750.22 1627.69 1677.73

Anthem Account Based
Employee 671.27 642.79 574.98 572.23 208.33
Employee +1 1365.73 1307.34 1168.33 1162.7 333.33
Employee +2 or more 1835.31 1756.7 1569.54 1561.97 333.33

Kaiser
Employee 607.82 538.43 526.05 515.29 524.11 542.86
Employee +1 1204.96 1066.97 1042.22 1020.70 1038.33 1075.83
Employee +2 or more 1700.9 1505.65 1470.64 1440.19 1465.14 1518.19

Kaiser Account Based
Employee 433.6 384.72 418.87 407.64 225
Employee +1 857.32 759.57 827.86 805.41 450
Employee +2 or more 1209 1070.68 1167.32 1135.55 450

Medical



Delta Dental
Employee 33.72 33.72 34.33 36.02 36.02
Employee +1 65.2 65.2 67.73 71.18 71.18
Employee +2 or more 106.12 106.12 114.15 120.04 120.04

Delta Care
Employee 26.93 26.93 26.93 26.93 22.82
Employee +1 43.1 43.1 43.10 43.10 37.76
Employee +2 or more 62.46 62.46 62.46 62.46 55.65

VSP
Flat Rate 26.85 26.85 26.85 17.21 16.32

Dental

Vision



EE EE+1 EE+Fam EE EE+1 EE+Fam
Classic 836.61 1704.69 2291.67 Classic 836.61 1704.69 2291.67
Delta Dental 33.72 65.2 106.12 Delta Care 26.93 43.1 62.46
VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85 VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85

897.18 1796.74 2424.64 890.39 1774.64 2380.98
District 1800 1800 1800 District 1800 1800 1800
Employee 0 0 624.64 Employee 0 0 580.98

EE EE+1 EE+Fam EE EE+1 EE+Fam
Advantage 704.34 1433.52 1926.58 Advantage 704.34 1433.52 1926.58
Delta Dental 33.72 65.2 106.12 Delta Care 26.93 43.1 62.46
VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85 VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85

764.91 1525.57 2059.55 758.12 1503.47 2015.89
District 1800 1800 1800 District 1800 1800 1800
Employee 0 0 259.55 Employee 0 0 215.89

EE EE+1 EE+Fam EE EE+1 EE+Fam
Cal Care 732.32 1454.78 1951.02 Cal Care 732.32 1454.78 1951.02
Delta Dental 33.72 65.2 106.12 Delta Care 26.93 43.1 62.46
VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85 VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85

792.89 1546.83 2083.99 786.1 1524.73 2040.33
District 1800 1800 1800 District 1800 1800 1800
Employee 0 0 283.99 Employee 0 0 240.33

EE EE+1 EE+Fam EE EE+1 EE+Fam
Anthem Health Sav 671.27 1365.73 1835.31 Anthem He 671.27 1365.73 1835.31
Delta Dental 33.72 65.2 106.12 Delta Care 26.93 43.1 62.46
VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85 VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85
Health Sav 208.33 333.33 333.33 Health Sav 208.33 333.33 333.33

940.17 1791.11 2301.61 933.38 1769.01 2257.95
District 1800 1800 1800 District 1800 1800 1800
Employee 0 0 501.61 Employee 0 0 457.95

EE EE+1 EE+Fam EE EE+1 EE+Fam
Kaiser 607.82 1204.96 1700.9 Kaiser 607.82 1204.96 1700.9
Delta Dental 33.72 65.2 106.12 Delta Care 26.93 43.1 62.46
VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85 VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85

668.39 1297.01 1833.87 661.6 1274.91 1790.21

Employee Insurance Costs 2018



District 1800 1800 1800 District 1800 1800 1800
Employee 0 0 33.87 Employee 0 0 0

EE EE+1 EE+Fam EE EE+1 EE+Fam
Kaiser Health Sav 433.6 857.32 1209 Kaiser Heal 433.6 857.32 1209
Delta Dental 33.72 65.2 106.12 Delta Care 26.93 43.1 62.46
VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85 VSP 26.85 26.85 26.85
Health Sav 225 450 450 Health Sav 225 450 450

719.17 1399.37 1791.97 712.38 1377.27 1748.31
District 1800 1800 1800 District 1800 1800 1800
Employee 0 0 0 Employee 0 0 0



P A L M D A L E   W A T E R   D I S T R I C T

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M    

DATE: September 6, 2017 September 13, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Jennifer Emery, Human Resources Director 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON NOT DESIGNATING ANNUAL COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 
TOWARDS EMPLOYEES’ PORTION OF CALPERS EFFECTIVE 
JANUARY 1, 2018. 

Recommendation: 

Staff and members of the Personnel Committee recommend that the District grant a cost 
of living increase for January 1, 2018, which will be based on the annual CPI, and that 
this increase is not applied to the employee portion of CalPERS. 

Alternative Options: 

The alternative is to either not grant a cost of living increase or to grant the increase but 
apply it to the Employee portion of CalPERS. 

Background: 

The District has received an attorney opinion that PEPRA does not require Classic 
members to pay the employee portion of CalPERS contributions. However, since 2014 
the District has chosen to have employees begin to contribute to the employee portion of 
CalPERS. Currently, the employees contribute 4.33%, and the District contributes 2.67%. 
All employees hired after January 1, 2013 are PEPRA members. Currently, the District 
has 65 Classic Members and 16 PEPRA members. The District’s employees also 
contribute to Social Security. The District’s Classic members have a 2% at 55 program, 
and the PEPRA members have a 2% at 62 program. Many organizations in the Antelope 
Valley chose a more robust retirement program, however, the District chose to stay with 
the more fiscally conservative approach.   

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

This work is part of Strategic Plan Initiative No. 2: Organizational Excellence 

Budget: 

This will be included in our 2018 budget.  

Supporting Documents: 

N/A 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3



P A L M D A L E   W A T E R   D I S T R I C T

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M    

DATE: September 6, 2017 September 13, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Jennifer Emery, Human Resources Director 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON SAFETY AND TRAINING TECHNICIAN POSITION AT SALARY 
RANGE 29. ($22,000.00 FOR REMAINDER OF 2017; POSITION WILL 
BE INCLUDED IN 2018 BUDGET – NON-BUDGETED – HUMAN 
RESOURCES DIRECTOR EMERY/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE) 

Recommendation: 

Staff and members of the Personnel Committee recommend that the District fill a Safety and 
Training Technician position. 

Alternative Options: 

The alternative is to continue without a Safety and Training Technician. 

Background: 

The District has assessed its safety requirements in the past and determined a need for a safety 
position.  This position was eliminated many years ago due to fiscal constraints.  The District has 
many positions which are at risk for safety hazards. Much of our field work is construction. 
According to the United States Department of Labor website, one in five worker deaths last year 
were in construction. In order to protect our workers and make sure that we are providing the 
safest work environment possible, we will need to have an employee who can spend at least fifty 
percent of their time in the field with our staff to observe and encourage compliance with all safety 
standards. 

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

This work is part of Strategic Plan Initiative No. 2: Organizational Excellence 

Budget: 

This will be included in our 2018 budget. The effect on budget for the current year is $22,000. 

Supporting Documents: 

 Salary Survey
 Position Tracking

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4



























































































POSITION Mar‐17
Budget 
2017

Budget 
2016

Budget 
2015

Budget 
2014

Budget 
2013

Budget 
2012

Budget 
2011

ADMINISTRATION:
General Manager/CEO 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Assistant General Manager/COO 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Water & Energy Resources Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Deputy Water & Energy Resources Manager 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0
Public Affairs Director 1 1 0.5 0 0 0 0 0
Public Affairs Specialist 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Executive Assistant 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Administrative Assistant 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1
Management Analyst 2 2 1 1 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL: 10 10 7.5 7 5 5 5 5

ENGINEERING:
Engineering/Grant Manager 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1
Project Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Engineering Analyst 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Construction Inspector 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Cross Connection Control Specialist 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
G.I.S. Coordinator 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0
Engineering Technician 2 1 1 3 3 3 3 3
Engineering Design Technician 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL: 11 10 9 9 8 9 9 9

FACILITIES:
Facilities Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Construction Supervisor 1 1 1 0 0 0 1 1
Senior Service Worker 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Service Workers 9 9 10 11 11 11 11 11
Warehouse Technician 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Operations Technician ‐ Fleet Lead 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Operations Technician ‐ Mechanical Lead 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Operations Technician 6 6 0 0 0 0 0 0
Equipment Mechanic Supervisor 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1
Equipment Mechanic 0 0 4 4 4 4 4 3
Maintenance Worker 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0
Systems Supervisor 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0
Pump Operator 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0
Electrical/Instrumentation Technician ‐ Lead 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Electrician 1 1 2 2 0 0 0 0
Electronic Technician 2 2 2 2 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL: 28 29 30 29 22 22 23 22

OPERATIONS:
Operations Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Treatment Plant Supervisor 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1
Plant Operator ‐ Lead 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plant Operators 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Senior Maintenance Mechanic 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1

Palmdale Water District
Departmental Staffing Budget



Maintenance Mechanic 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1
Administrative Technician 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1
Operations Technician 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0
Water Quality / Regulatory Affairs Supervisor 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Laboratory Analyst 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Systems Supervisor 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1
Pump Operator 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 2
Electrician 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 2
Electronic Technician 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 2

SUBTOTAL: 10 10 13 13 21 21 21 21

FINANCE:
Finance Manager/CFO 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Accounting Supervisor 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Accounting Technician 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1
Accounting Assistant 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1
Customer Finance Supervisor 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Assistant Customer Service Supervisor 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1
Customer Account Technician 3 3 3 0 0 0 0 0
Customer Service Representative 0 0 0 9 9 9 9 9
Part time Customer Service Representative 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2
Field Service Supervisor 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Senior Field Service Technician 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1
Field Service Technician 0 0 0 7 7 7 6 6

SUBTOTAL: 7 7 7 22 23 23 25 25

WATER CONSERVATION:
Public Information Officer/Conservation Director 0 0 0.5 1 1 1 1 1
Water Conservation Supervisor 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1
Water Conservation Aide 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Field Customer Care Representative (Water Cons) 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL 2 2 1.5 2 3 3 3 3

HUMAN RESOURCES:
Safety and Training Technician 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Human Resources Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

SUBTOTAL: 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY:
Information Technology Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Information Technology Technician 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1
Information Technology Help Desk Technician 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL: 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

CUSTOMER CARE:
Customer Care Supervisor 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Customer Care Representative 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0
Customer Care Representative 6 6 7 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Field Customer Care Representative 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0
Field Customer Care Representative 4 4 6 0 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL: 13 13 15 0 0 0 0 0

DISTRICT TOTAL: 85 84 86 85 85 86 89 88



P A L M D A L E   W A T E R   D I S T R I C T  

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M    

DATE: September 6, 2017   September 13, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS                            Board Meeting 

FROM: Jennifer Emery, Human Resources Director 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON INTERNSHIP PROGRAM. (FUNDED THROUGH THE 
FOUNDATION FOR COMMUNITY COLLEGES – HUMAN 
RESOURCES DIRECTOR EMERY/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE) 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff and members of the Personnel Committee recommend that the District approve 
creating and filling four internship positions for the Fall, 2017 semester. 
 
Alternative Options: 
 
The alternative is to not create the positions. 
 
Background: 
 
The District has had significant success with our Internship Program, and this semester 
we have been able to obtain funding through South Central Coast Region Colleges for 
four positions – Plant Operator Intern, Service Worker Intern, Laboratory Analyst Intern, 
and Field/Customer Care Intern. These positions will be for full time students at either 
College of the Canyons or Antelope Valley College, and they are approved for 320 hours 
of work during the semester.   
 
Strategic Plan Initiative: 
 
This work is part of Strategic Plan Initiative No. 2: Organizational Excellence 
 
Budget: 
 
The cost to the District will be for incidentals such as training, uniforms, etc. The hourly 
pay and workers’ compensation will be funded through the Foundation for Community 
Colleges, and the interns will be employees of the Foundation for Community Colleges. 
 
Supporting Documents: 
 
 Job Descriptions 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5



03/11/15 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 

FIELD/CUSTOMER CARE REPRESENTATIVE INTERN 

FLSA Status: Non-Exempt 

DEFINITION 

To perform a variety of field customer care activities including installation, repair of water 
meters and radio transmitting devices; to read, collect, and record water consumption from 
meters; and to interact with the public in the course of field activities. 

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 

This is the entry level position in the Field Customer Care Series. Positions in this class 
typically have little or no directly related work experience and work under immediate 
supervision while learning job tasks progressing to general supervision as procedures and 
processes of assigned area of responsibility are learned. 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

Receives general supervision from the Senior Field Customer Care Representative; 
receives technical and functional supervision from the Field Customer Care Representative 
I/II. 

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL DUTIES - Duties may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

Read consumption based water meters on assigned routes; record readings via 
automated devices or manually, as necessary. 

Identify meter equipment problems, stuck or non-functioning, replacing as needed. 

Identify radio transmitter problems; Install/repair/replace transmitting devices, as 
necessary. 

Re-read meters in cases of unusual billings or consumption patterns. Review consistency 
and accuracy of meter readings; document and report unusual readings and/or 
circumstances for follow up; perform leak detection checks as requested or according to 
observation. 

Build and maintain positive working relationships with co-workers, other District employees 
and the public using principles of good customer care. 

Perform related duties as assigned. 



Field Customer Care Representative Intern  
- 2 - 
 
 

  03/11/15 

 
 
 
EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY: 
 
This intern position will provide the following educational experiences: 
 
Knowledge of: 
 
Basic principles of arithmetic, including addition, subtraction, multiplication, division, and 
percentages. 
 
Basic practices and methods of record keeping. 
 
Basic practices of customer interaction. 
 
Ability to: 
 
Perform a variety of field customer care activities related to the installation, repair, and 
reading of water meters. 
 
On a continuous basis, know and understand operations and observe safety rules; 
intermittently analyze problem situations and/or equipment; identify and locate site 
locations; interpret work orders, remember equipment location, and explain job to others. 
 
Intermittently, sit while studying or preparing reports and/or driving; bend, squat, kneel, 
twist, and walk long distances when performing field duties; perform simple and power 
grasping, pushing, pulling, and fine manipulation; and lift or carry weight up to 50 pounds. 
 
Learn geography and street/road locations within the District’s jurisdiction. 
 
Learn to use a computer to enter and retrieve data. 
 
Learn to use manual methods and electronic equipment used in collecting and recording 
meter readings. 
 
Learn to identify and repair minor problems with water meters and data 
collection/recording devices. 
 
Deal tactfully with customers encountered in the field. 
 
Work outdoors in a variety of weather conditions. 
 
Work assigned shift schedules; be available for call back. 
 



Field Customer Care Representative Intern 
- 3 - 

03/11/15 

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of 
work. 

Experience and Training 

Must be enrolled in college work experience program during the semester of 
employment to qualify. 

License and Certificate 

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid California driver’s license. 

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a Distribution Operator Grade 1 Certificate as 
issued by the State of California Department of Public Health. 

Approved: 3/11/2015   

I have reviewed this job description with my Supervisor and agree with its contents. 

___________________________________                ______________________ 
Employee Signature                Date 

___________________________________  ______________________ 
Supervisor Signature Date 

The specific statements shown in each section of this job description are not intended to 
be all-inclusive.  They represent typical elements and criteria necessary to successfully 
perform the job. 



3/1/2015

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 

LABORATORY ANALYST INTERN 

FLSA Status: Non-Exempt 

DEFINITION 

To perform educational level duties related to a variety of chemical, biochemical, and 
bacteriological water testing and analysis activities. 

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 

This is the entry level internship in the Laboratory Analyst series.  This internship is 
distinguished from the journey level by the performance of the more routine tasks and 
duties assigned to positions within this series.  Employees at this level are not expected to 
perform with the same independence of direction and judgment on matters allocated to the 
journey level.  Since this internship is typically used as a training class, employees may 
have only limited or no directly related work experience.  Employees work under general 
supervision while learning job tasks. 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

Receives general supervision from the Water Quality Supervisor; may receive technical 
and functional supervision from a Laboratory Analyst 1/2. 

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL DUTIES - Duties may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

Prepare glassware and media. 

Prepare Quality Control on media and containers. 

Perform instrument calibrations. 

Set up, calibrate, and operate a variety of laboratory equipment and instruments. 

Prepare standard chemical solutions, reagents, stains and bacteriological media. 

Enter laboratory data into a computer system for further analysis and reporting purposes; 
maintain laboratory records and prepare required reports. 

Assist in maintaining adequate laboratory supplies and inventory; order supplies as 
assigned. 



Laboratory Analyst Intern 
- 2 - 
 
 

  3/1/2015 

 
Work with consultants or vendors as required. 
 
Test, analyze, and collect various granular activated carbon samples. 
 
Build and maintain positive working relationships with co-workers, other District 
employees and the public using principles of good customer service. 
 
Perform related duties as assigned.  
 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 Knowledge of: 

 

Principles and practices of chemistry, bacteriology and the chemical sciences, 
including methods and techniques of laboratory testing and analysis. 

 
Modern laboratory procedures and equipment, including computer uses and 
applications used in laboratory testing and analysis. 
 
Sample collection/monitoring procedures and sample preservation methods related 
to water treatment processes. 
 
Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment including word 
processing, database and spreadsheet applications. 
 
Ability to: 
 
Perform educational level duties related to a variety of chemical, biochemical, and 
bacteriological water testing and analysis activities. 
 
On a continuous basis, learn and understand all aspects of the job; intermittently 
analyze work papers, reports and special projects; identify and interpret technical 
and numerical information; observe and problem solve operational and technical 
policy and procedures. 

 
On a continuous basis, sit at desk for long periods of time; intermittently bend, 
squat, climb, kneel or twist while performing field sampling work; intermittently twist 
to reach equipment surrounding desk; perform simple grasping and fine 
manipulation; use telephone, and write or use a keyboard to communicate through 
written means; and lift or carry weight up to 25 pounds. 
 
Prepare reagents; assemble and operate testing apparatus and equipment 
 



Laboratory Analyst Intern 
- 3 - 

3/1/2015 

Perform tests accurately and precisely and maintain associated records. 

Learn pertinent local, State, and Federal codes, regulations, and laws. 

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the 
course of work. 

Experience and Training 

College student with science major: (Ex, Biology, Chemistry, Environmental 
Science, etc. 

Completed coursework of general chemistry & laboratory with grade “C” or better. 

Completed coursework of general biology & laboratory with grade “C” or better. 

General knowledge of laboratory safety procedures. 

License and Certificate: 

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid California Drivers’ License.  

Approved: 

I have reviewed this job description with my Supervisor and agree with its contents. 

___________________________________                ______________________ 
Employee Signature         Date 

___________________________________  ______________________ 
Supervisor Signature Date 

The specific statements shown in each section of this job description are not intended to 
be all-inclusive.  They represent typical elements and criteria necessary to successfully 
perform the job. 



Plant Operator Intern 
1 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 

PLANT OPERATOR INTERN 

FLSA Status: Non-Exempt 

DEFINITION 

To learn a variety of skilled duties related to the continuous maintenance and operation 
of the water treatment plant. 

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 

This is the intern level class in the Plant Operator series.  Positions in this class typically 
have little or no directly related work experience and work under immediate supervision 
while learning job tasks. Incumbents work under immediate supervision while learning job 
tasks, progressing to general supervision as procedures and processes of assigned area of 
responsibility are learned. 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

Receives task supervision from the Plant Operator I/II or III; receives general supervision 
from the Operations Manager. 

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL DUTIES - Duties may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

Learn to manually and/or remotely operate SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition) computer equipment to control and monitor flow of water treatment and 
processing of chemicals through the treatment plant and water distribution system; 
monitor gauges and meters and record instrument readings; maintain daily and other 
logs. 

Observe variations in operating conditions; interpret computer, meter and gauge 
readings; check, standardize and calibrate instruments, analyzers and chemical feed 
pumps; start and stop electric driven pumps and motors to control and adjust flow and 
treatment processes. 

Learn to perform basic maintenance and repair of treatment plant equipment. 

Learn to perform standardized water quality control tests. 

Follow procedures for receiving, recording, and store all deliveries, including chemical 
deliveries in accordance with accepted safety standards and requirements. 



 
Plant Operator Intern 
2 
Learn to inspect mechanical equipment for proper working order and prepare/submit work 
orders for mechanical and/or electrical maintenance attention; perform routine 
maintenance work as necessary. 
 
Participate in preparation of reports to various external regulatory agencies and District 
divisions and departments. 
 
Maintain records and documentation; respond to customer questions and complaints 
regarding water quality. 
 
Build and maintain positive working relationships with co-workers, other District 
employees, and the public using principles of good customer service. 
 
Perform related duties as assigned. 
 
EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY: 
 
 The intern position will provide the following educational experiences: 
 
 Knowledge of: 
 
 Basic computer techniques. 
 
 Basic building and equipment maintenance techniques and methods. 
 
 Basic water treatment techniques and methods. 
 

Ability to: 
 
Perform a variety of skilled duties related to the continuous operation of a water 
treatment plant. 
 
On a continuous basis, know and understand operations, and observe safety rules; 
intermittently analyze problem processes and equipment; identify and locate 
equipment; interpret work orders; remember equipment location; and explain jobs to 
others. 

 
Intermittently, sit while studying or preparing reports; bend, squat, climb, kneel and 
twist when reviewing operation of treatment plant and performing basic maintenance; 
perform simple and power grasping, pushing, pulling, and fine manipulation; and lift 
or carry weight up to 50 pounds. 
 
Perform routine laboratory tests and analysis; determine chemical and physical 
characteristics of raw, settled, filtered, and finished water. 
 



 
Plant Operator Intern 
3 

Use a computer to maintain required records and documentation; respond to 
customer questions and complaints. 
 
Use various hand and power tools to perform basic mechanical maintenance. 
 
Operate light mechanical equipment such as skip loaders, backhoes and front end 
loaders, as needed. 
 
Work assigned shift schedules; be available for call back. 
 
Work outdoors in a variety of weather conditions. 
 
Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 
Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the 
course of work. 
 
REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Must be enrolled in Water Treatment/Distribution classes/program with an 
accredited college. 
 
Must be enrolled in college work experience program during the semester of 
employment to qualify. 

 
Experience: 
 
Completion or concurrent enrollment in Water Treatment class. 
 
Training: 
 
Equivalent to the completion of the twelfth grade. 
 

License and Certificate 
 
Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid California Driver’s License. 
 
Ability to obtain a Water Treatment Operator Grade 1 Certificate as issued by the 
State Water Resources Control Board. 
 
Ability to obtain a Distribution Operator Grade 1 Certificate as issued by the State 
Water Resources Control Board is desired. 
 

 
 
 



Plant Operator Intern 
4 
I have reviewed this job description with my Supervisor and agree with its contents. 

___________________________________                ______________________ 
Employee Signature         Date 

___________________________________  ______________________ 
Supervisor Signature Date 

The specific statements shown in each section of this job description are not intended to be 
all-inclusive.  They represent typical elements and criteria necessary to successfully perform 
the job. 



4/14/2014 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 

SERVICE WORKER INTERN 

FLSA Status: Non-Exempt 

DEFINITION 

To perform semi-skilled work in the construction, installation, building maintenance, and 
repair of a water service distribution system; and to perform a variety of customer 
service duties in the field. 

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 

This is the entry level position in the Service Worker series.  Positions in this class typically 
have little or no directly related work experience and work under immediate supervision 
while learning job tasks. Incumbents work under immediate supervision while learning job 
tasks, progressing to general supervision as procedures and processes of assigned area 
of responsibility are learned. 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

Receives immediate supervision from the Facilities Manager; receives technical and 
functional supervision from an assigned Service Worker II. 

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL DUTIES - Duties may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

Install, maintain, and repair components of a water service distribution system, including 
valves and a variety of meters, gauges, and flow monitoring devices. 

Perform a variety of maintenance and construction tasks. 

Inspect water tanks and wells and surrounding areas for vandalism and water supply 
security problems; report to supervisor, as appropriate.  

Operate, maintain, repair and paint air operated vacuum valves and fire hydrants. 

Perform building and grounds maintenance, as assigned.  

Clean work vehicles; stock vehicles with parts and materials according to service order 
needs. 

Perform maintenance and repair of angle stops. 



Service Worker Intern 
- 2 - 
 
 

  4/14/2014 

Respond as needed to customer concerns in the field or refer to other District staff as 
appropriate. 
 
Build and maintain positive working relationships with co-workers, other District employees 
and the public using principles of good customer service. 
 
Perform related duties as assigned. 
 
 
EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY 
 
 The intern position will provide the following educational experiences: 
 
 

Knowledge of: 
 
Basic construction methods, materials, and equipment. 

 
Basic building and grounds maintenance techniques and methods. 
 
Ability to: 
 
Construct, install, maintain, and repair components of a water service distribution 
system. 

 
Know and understand operations, and observe safety rules; intermittently analyze 
problem equipment; identify and locate equipment; interpret work orders; remember 
equipment location; and explain jobs to others. 

 
Use various hand and power tools and equipment, including digging bar, push 
broom and drills. 
 
Read and understand distribution system maps and related drawings. 
 
Complete required reports and daily logs related to work activities. 
 
Perform building and grounds maintenance work. 
 
Perform heavy manual labor and work in traffic situations. 
 
Work outdoors in a variety of weather conditions. 
 
Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 
Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the 
course of work. 



Service Worker Intern 
- 3 - 

4/14/2014 

Ability to intermittently, sit while studying or preparing reports; bend, squat, climb, 
kneel and twist when performing installation of equipment; perform simple and 
power grasping, pushing, pulling, and fine manipulation; and lift or carry weight up 
to 50 pounds. 

REQUIREMENTS: 

Must be enrolled in college work experience program during the semester of 
employment to qualify. 

License and Certificate 

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid California Driver’s License. 

Ability to obtain a Water Treatment Operator Grade 1 Certificate as issued by the 
State Water Resources Control Board. 

Ability to obtain a Distribution Operator Grade 1 Certificate as issued by the State 
Water Resources Control Board is desired. 

Approved: 4/4/14 

I have reviewed this job description with my Supervisor and agree with its contents. 

___________________________________                ______________________ 
Employee Signature         Date 

___________________________________  ______________________ 
Supervisor Signature Date 

The specific statements shown in each section of this job description are not intended to 
be all-inclusive.  They represent typical elements and criteria necessary to successfully 
perform the job. 



P A L M D A L E   W A T E R   D I S T R I C T  

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: September 6, 2017       September 13, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS    Board Meeting   
FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.6 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON CO-HOSTING LEADERSHIP TRAINING FOR ELECTED 
OFFICIALS. (DIRECTOR ESTES/HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 
EMERY) 

 

 
The concept of hosting or co-hosting Leadership Training for elected officials has 

been raised. This item is presented for the Board’s discussion. 
 

Supporting Documents: 
 

 Example of Management & Supervisory Leadership Program by the Public 
Utilities & Waterworks Management Institute 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.6



EXAMPLE



EXAMPLE



EXAMPLE



AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.7





















































~ 1 ~ 

MINUTES  OF MEETING  OF  THE  FINANCE  COMMITTEE  OF  THE  PALMDALE 

WATER DISTRICT, JULY 24, 2017: 

A meeting of  the Finance Committee of  the Palmdale Water District was held Monday,  July 24, 

2017, at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale, California, in the Board Room of the District office. Chair 

Henriquez called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 

1) Roll Call.

Attendance: Others Present: 

Finance Committee: Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

Marco Henriquez, Chair Mike Williams, Finance Manager 

Robert Alvarado, Committee Tim Moore, Facilities Manager 

Member Judy Shay, Public Affairs Director 

Bob Egan, Financial Advisor (via Skype) 

Danielle Henry, Administrative Assistant 

1 member of the public 

2) Adoption of Agenda.

It was moved by Committee Member Alvarado, seconded by Chair Henriquez, and 

unanimously carried by all members of the Committee present at the meeting to adopt the 

agenda, as written. 

3) Public Comments on Non‐Agenda Items.

There were no public comments on non‐agenda items. 

4) Action Items:

4.1)  Consideration  and Possible Action on Approval of Minutes of Meeting 

Held June 26, 2017. 

It was moved by Committee Member Alvarado, seconded by Chair Henriquez, 

and unanimously carried by all members of  the Committee present at  the meeting  to 

approve the minutes of the Finance Committee meeting held June 26, 2017, as written.  

4.2)  Discussion  and  Overview  of  Cash  Flow  Statement  and  Current  Cash 

Balances as of May, 2017. (Financial Advisor Egan) 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1








	AgendaRegular9-13-17
	Item5.1
	1
	Changing Focus
	Mainline Leaks
	Re-Aligning Resources�
	Flushing
	Large Meter Maintenance 
	Air vacs
	Valve Turning
	Collector App

	2
	Vehicle Fleet and Heavy Equipment
	List of Vehicles and Equipment
	Budget Impact 

	3
	Compound Meters
	Compound meters supply high flow rates when necessary, but also measure low flow . Accuracy is essential to account for all water delivered to our customers and prevent water loss in our system
	Testing for Accuracy
	It is essential to maintain and update our meters through:�replacement/ new technology�retro fit existing assemblies.�maintenance of existing valves and piping
	Slide Number 5
	Corrosion is our biggest culprit that causes leaks and failure
	Budget Impacts
	Return on Investment

	4
	Pressure Reducing Valves 
	Slide Number 2
	Pipe Corrosion
	Slide Number 4
	Recently the Construction Crew and Operations Crew installed a complete P.R.V on 47th st. E. and Ave. S-10. The cost to replace this assembly = $27,563.00
	Cycled Maintenance 

	5
	AIR VAC’s�combination air release / vacuum valves�
	PRESSURE ZONES
	Air Vac’s play a very important role to help keep our infrastructure functioning properly.
	BUDGET IMPACT
	Return on Investment

	6
	Palmdale Water District  
	In 2015, the district had reported a total of 409.7 miles of pipeline installed.    
	There are 3 very high priority pipelines, that will need to be address as soon as possible. �The failures in these areas will have a major impact to these sites.  
	And there’s another 14 high priority sites. 
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7

	7 (1)
	Palmdale Water District
	Slide Number 2
	In Asset Management, Deferred Maintenance is? 
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	What is Life Cycle Cost Analysis (LCCA)? 
	The Life cycle formula is, 
	Life Cycle Cost Analysis 
	The LCCA spreadsheets also has data for Deferred Maintenance (DM). 
	The LCCA spreadsheets data is a calculation of,   


	Item6.1
	Item6.2
	Item7.1
	Item7.2
	Item7.3
	Item7.4
	Item7.5
	Item7.6
	Item4.7-P

	Item7.7
	Item8.1



